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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheefiofan Cooperative Bank, Ltd. as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related stateroé comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years then ended.es&liinancial statements are the responsibility
of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility isetpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Régns Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements of Financial Institutiong ®@ertified Public Accountants and auditing
standards generally accepted in the Republic oh&hi Those rules and standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablarasse about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit inekicexamining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the dimshrstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signifestimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement predema We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrea@lbove present fairly, in all material respedis, t
financial position of Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Lak of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for thergethen ended, in conformity with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of FinanRgborts by Public Banks and the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports égufities Firms.

February 22, 2016

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intendely to present the financial position,

financial performance and cash flows in accordamagén accounting principles and practices

generally accepted in the Republic of China and thmtse of any other jurisdictions. The
standards, procedures and practices to audit sirdmtial statements are those generally applied
in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independenitastdreport and the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English firotiginal Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any confligitween the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interptietaof the two versions, the Chinese-language
independent auditors’ report and financial statetseshall prevail.
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Notes 4, 6 and 35)

DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND CALL LOANS TO OTHER BINKS (Notes 4, 7, 35 and 36)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LSS (Notes 4, 8 and 35)

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS (Note® and 35)
RECEIVABLES, NET (Notes 4, 10, 35 and 42)

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (Notes 4, 32, 35 and 37)

DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET (Notes 4, 11, 35 and 36)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET (Notes 412 and 36)
HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS (Notes 4, 13 an8b)
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD (Noget and 14)
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 15 and 36)

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Notes 4 and 16)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, NET (Notes 4 and 17)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Notes 4 and 18)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Notes 4 and 32)

OTHER ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 19 and 37)

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

DUE TO THE CENTRAL BANK AND OTHER BANKS (Notes 20nd 35)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Notes 4, 8, 24 and 35)

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (Nofes, 12, 13, 21 and 35)

PAYABLES (Notes 22 and 35)
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 32 and 35)
DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES (Notes 23 and 35)
BANK DEBENTURES (Note 24)
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Notes 25, 35 and 37)
PROVISIONS (Notes 4, 26 and 27)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 16 and 32)
OTHER LIABILITIES (Notes 4 and 35)

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Capital stock
Common stock
Capital surplus
Additional paid-in capital from share issuanceuess of par value
From treasury stock transactions
Total capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity

Total equity
TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

2014 (Audited after

1,972,923,223

95,884,851
42,394,027
2,100,003
101,187,401
39,286,038
2,269,500
3,625,263
1,227,216

1,061,451

2015 Retrospected)
Amount Amount
42,442 551 42,029,035
711,892,231 690,813,486
14,936,076 43,669,323
209,592 1,851,763
13,369,207 13,074,168
987,343 1,570,953

1,853,660,859

69,774,501
20,046,117
2,052,636
120,615,984
39,650,610
2,083,696
3,695,654
1,074,810

3,770,694

$ 3,045,795,973

198,372,977
14,706,922
17,452,480
35,302,680

1,326,368

2,504,628,491

69,610,000
7,710,161
9,286,765
3,453,496

1,185,632

$ 2,909,434,289

176,001,915
6,082,468
23,179,705
41,690,572

79,910

2,397,346,915

92,110,000
9,061,589
8,831,254
3,568,502

1,170,822

2,863,035,972

2,759,123,652

83,493,000 71,362,760
52,951,835 2 38,627,359 1
103,157 - 103,157 -
53,054,992 2 38,730,516 1
25,586,622 22,548,376 1
1,217,583 1,217,583
18,349,592 16,964,284
45,153,797 40,730,243 1
1,058,212 (512,882)
182,760,001 150,310,637 5
$ 3,045,795,973 $ 2,909,434,289

N

=

»

=

N
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

INTEREST REVENUE (Notes 4, 28
and 35)

INTEREST EXPENSE (Notes 4, 28
and 35)

NET INTEREST

NET REVENUES AND GAINS OTHEF

THAN INTEREST

Service fee income, net (Notes 4, 29,
35 and 42)

Gains on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss
(Notes 4, 30 and 35)

Realized gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 4)

Foreign exchange gains (losses), net
(Note 4)

Impairment losses on assets (Notes 4,
12, 13, 15 and 19)

Share of gains of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity
method (Notes 4 and 14)

Gains on financial assets carried at
cost, net (Note 4)

Gains on disposal of properties and
equipment, net (Notes 4 and 35)

Other noninterest gains (losses), net
(Notes 35 and 42)

Total net revenues and gains
other than interest

TOTAL NET REVENUES

BAD-DEBT EXPENSES AND
PROVISION FOR LOSSES ON
GUARANTEES (Notes 4 and 11)

Percentage

2014 (Audited after Increase

2015 Retrospected) (Decrease)

Amount % Amount % %

$ 50,960,726 130 $ 50,598,352 128 1
(21,054,489) _(54) (22,945,405) _(58) (8)
29,906,237 76 27,652,947 70 8
5,929,969 15 5,259,824 13 13
455,847 1 2,663,086 7 (83)
633,063 2 550,004 1 15
1,243,147 3 (95,262) - 1,405
(5,730) - (21,236) - (73)
294,718 1 224,293 - 31
240,159 1 252,294 1 (5)
154,779 - 3,106,619 8 (95)
285,691 1 (34,569) - 926
9,231,643 24 11,905,053 30 (22)
39,137,880 100 39,558,000 100 Q)
(2,158,168) (6) (6,270,689) _(16) (66)

(Continued)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

Percentage
2014 (Audited after Increase
2015 Retrospected) (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 4, 16,
17,18, 27, 31 and 35)
Employee benefits $ (15,073,800) (38) $ (14,569,944) (37) 3
Depreciation and amortization (1,202,766) 3) (1,213,900) 3) Q)
General and administrative (6,621,632) _(17) (5.,859,677) _(15) 13
Total operating expenses (22,898,198) _(58) (21,643,521) _(55) 6
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 14,081,514 36 11,643,790 29 21
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4
and 32) (1,952,033) (5) (1,515,231) 4) 29
NET INCOME 12,129,481 31 10,128,559 25 20
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
(Notes 4 and 27)
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plans (616,927) (2) (34,190) - 1,704
Changes in the fair value
attributable to changes in the
credit risk of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss 2,168 - - - -
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss,
net of income tax (614,759) (2) (34,190) - 1,698
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
(Notes 4, 14 and 32)
Exchange differences on the
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations 182,004 - 347,989 1 (48)
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets 1,509,479 4 (243,609) Q) 720
(Continued)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

Percentage
2014 (Audited after Increase
2015 Retrospected) (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
Share of other comprehensive losses
of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method $  (119,127) - $  (117,757) - 1
Income tax attributable to other
comprehensive income (3.430) - (31,042) - (89)
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss,
net of income tax 1,568,926 4 (44,419) - 3,632
Other comprehensive income
(losses), net of income tax 954,167 2 (78,609) - 1,314
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 13,083,648 3 $ 10,049,950 5 30
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NEW
TAIWAN DOLLARS; Note 33)
Basic $1.52 $1.46
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements. (Concluded)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2014
Effect of retrospective application
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2014 AS RETROSPECTED
Reversal of special reverse
Appropriation of the 2013 earnings
Legal reserve
Cash dividends
Capital increase in June 2014
Capital increase in December 2014
Total comprehensive income
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2014
Other comprehensive losses for the year ended Dmsredd, 2014
Total comprehensive income for the year ended Dbeeidil, 2014
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2014 AS RETROSPECTED
Appropriation of the 2014 earnings
Legal reserve
Cash dividends
Capital increase in March 2015
Capital increase in October 2015
Share-based payment arrangements involving TCFet@snon stock
Total comprehensive income
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2015
Other comprehensive income for the year ended DigeeB1, 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year ended Dbeeidil, 2015

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part dfitla@cial statements.

Capital Stock (Note 34)

Shares
(In Thousands)

6,843,252

6,843,252

200,000

93,024

7,136,276

993,024

220,000

8,349,300

Common Stock

$ 68,432,520

68,432,520

2,000,000

930,240

71,362,760

9,930,240

2,200,000

$ 83,493,000

Capital Surplus
(Notes 4 and 34)

$ 35,360,741

35,360,741

2,300,000

1,069,775

38,730,516

11,419,776
2,596,000

308,700

$ 53,054,992

Retained Earnings (Notes 4 and 34)

Other Equity

Unappropriated

Legal Reserve Special Reserve Earnings

$ 20,141,758 $ 1,309,025 $ 14,788,307

(3.216)

20,141,758 1,309,025 14,785,091

- (91,442) 91,442

2,406,618 -

(2,406,618)
(5,600,000)

10,128,559
(34.190)
10,094,369
22,548,376

1,217,583 16,964,284

3,038,246 -

(3,038,246)
(7,089,000)

12,129,481
(616,927)

11,512,554

$ 25,586,622 $ 1,217,583 $ 18,349,592

Exchange Differences

on the Translation of

Financial Statemens

of Foreign Operations
(Note 4)

$ 44,030

44,030

191,583
191,583

235,613

52,280

52,280

$ 287,893

Unrealized Gains
(Losses) on
Available-for-sale
Financial Assets
(Note 4)

$ (512,493)

(512,493)

(236,002)
(236,002)

(748,495)

1,516,646
1,516,646

$ 768,151

Changes in the Fair
Value Attributable to
Changes in the Credit

Risk of Financial
Liabilities Designated
as at Fair Value
through Profit or
Loss (Note 4)

$ -

2,168

2,168

$ 2,168

Total Equity
$ 139,563,888

(3,216)

139,560,672

(5,600,000)
4,300,000
2,000,015

10,128,559
(78.609)

10,049,950

150,310,637

(7,089,000)
21,350,016
4,796,000
308,700
12,129,481
954,167
13,083,648

$ 182,760,001



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Bad-debt expenses
Gains onihancial assets and liabilities at fair value tiglogrofit or
loss
Interest expense
Interest revenue
Dividend income
Provision (reversal of provision) for losses onnguéees
Salary expenses on share-based payments
Share of gains of subsidiaries, associates ant\jeirtures
accounted for using equity method
Gains on disposal of properties and equipment
Gains on disposal of investments
Impairment losses on financial assets
Reversal of impairment losses on non-financialtasse
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in due from the Central Badkcah loans t
other banks
Decrease in financial assets at fair value thrqurgffit or loss
Decrease (increase) in receivables
Decrease (increase) in discount and loans
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets
Increase in held-to-maturity financial assets
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in due to the Central Banlotdmst banks
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair valuedhgh profit or loss
Decrease in securities sold under repurchase agraem
Increase (decrease) in payables
Increase in deposits and remittances
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Increase (decrease) in provision for employee lsnef
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Cash generated by (used in) operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated by (used in) operating actvitie

2015

201< (Audited

after

Retrospected)

$ 14,081,514 $ 11,643,790

958,352 964,425
244,414 249,475
2,380,589 5,972,378
(455,847) (2,663,086)
21,054,489 22,945,405
(50,960,726)  (50,598,352)
(395,526) (372,030)
(222,421) 208,311
308,076 -
(294,718) (224,293)
(150,692) (3,099,277)
(518,260) (454,757)
7,857 21,380
(2,127) (144)
70,642,643  (57,984,315)
43,798,910 18,033,417
(203,153) 2,012,152
(121,068,132) 40,004,587
(24,201,353)  (16,454,642)
(22,605,381) (9,293,235)
19,564,808  (17,230,474)
2,713,585 (3,109,795)
22,371,062  (63,729,269)
(18,986,800)  (13,777,822)
(5,727,225) (9,186,763)
(6,176,434) 5,796,829
107,281,576 57,125,185
(1,956,423) (9,862,926)
60,538 (51,163)
156,076 (86,278)
51,699,271  (93,111,287)
51,015,813 49,542,701
524,374 475,900
(21,670,712)  (23,093,144)
(389,602) (1,606,797)
81,179,144 _ (67,792,627)

(Continued)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2014 (Audited
after
2015 Retrospected)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition for properties and equipment $ (788,922) $ (3,199,040)
Proceeds of the disposal of properties and equipmen - 4,290,443
Increase in refundable deposits (4,387) (30,582)
Acquisition for intangible assets (173,835) (167,831)
Proceeds of the disposal of collaterals assumed 2,127 144
Increase in other assets (43) (9,436)
Net cash generated by (used in) investing actsvitie (965,060) 883,698
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of the issuance of bank debentures 12,516,000 10,000,000
Repayment of bank debentures (22,500,000) (15,770,000)
Increase in guarantee deposits received 604,995 -
Decrease in guarantee deposits received - (273,905)
Dividends paid (7,089,000) (5,600,000)
Capital increase 26,146,016 6,300,015
Net cash generated by (used in) financing actwitie 9,678,011 (5,343,890)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 896,558 (91,714)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 90,788,653 (72,344,533)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 340,376,527 412,721,060
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE YEAR $ 431,165,180 $ 340,376,527
(Continued)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash and cash equivalent reconciliations:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheets

Due from the Central Bank and call loans to otrais in accordance
with the definition of cash and cash equivalentdaniAS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”

Securities purchased under resell agreements ordarece with the
definition of cash and cash equivalents under IAStatement of
Cash Flows”

Other items in accordance with the definition adltand cash
equivalents under IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

December 3.
201< (Audited
after

2015 Retrospected)

$ 42,442,551 $ 42,029,035

388,217,117 296,495,729

209,592 1,851,763

295,920 -

$ 431,165,180 $ 340,376,527
(Concluded)



TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless StateQtherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) was oifdilly established on October 5, 1946 to regulage t
supply of and demand for funds for cooperative pizgtions by accepting their surplus funds as dé&pos
and extending working funds to them. On Februdry2D06, the Bank changed its Chinese name upon
approval by the Ministry of Economic Affairs. Hower, the Bank’'s English name remains unchanged.
The Bank became a legal entity in 1985 in accorelamth the Banking Law. At the start of 2001, the
Bank was converted into a corporate entity engagéal) all commercial banking operations allowedem

the Banking Law; (b) international banking operasip(c) overseas branch operations as authorizeleby
respective foreign governments; and (d) other dipgrsas authorized by the central authority-inrgha

The Bank’s shares have been listed on the Taiwack3xchange since November 17, 2004.

The Bank merged with the Farmers Bank of China (FBCMay 1, 2006, with the Bank as the survivor
entity.

On June 24, 2011, the Bank's stockholders approivecdestablishment of Taiwan Cooperative Financial
Holding Company, Ltd. (TCFHC) by swapping the Banlshares with those Co-operative Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (CAM) and Taiwan CooperativilsBFinance Corporation Ltd. (TCBF) in
accordance with the “Financial Holding Company Aatid other regulations. The boards of directors of
the Bank, CAM and TCBF designated December 1, 231the effective date of the share swap. After the
shares transfer, the Bank became a 100% subsmfidi@FHC. Also on December 1, 2011, the trading of
the Bank’s stock on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (T®&3 stopped, and TCFHC's stock started to be
traded on the TSE.

On December 2, 2011, the Bank reduced its capt& 153 billion and spun off its Security Departmémt
incorporate Taiwan Cooperative Securities Corp.gY,@&hich became a 100% subsidiary of TCFHC.

The Bank has its Head Office in Taipei. It hadasiBess, International Banking, Finance, CreditdCar
and Trust Departments as well as 270 domestic besnan offshore banking unit (OBU), 9 overseas
branches and 2 representative office as of DeceBihhet015.

The operations of the Bank’s Trust Department &felanning, managing and operating the trust lassin
and (2) custodianship of nondiscretionary trusdfimdomestic and overseas securities and mutaalstu
These operations are regulated under the Bankingara Trust Law of the Republic of China (ROC).

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank hadl&h6é 8,405 employees, respectively.

The operating units of the Bank maintain their acds in their respective functional currencies. eTh
financial statements are presented in New Taiwdardo

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The parent company only financial statements wppgaved by the Bank’s board of directors on Felbyuar
22, 2016.

-10 -



3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDAR DS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the ltations Governing the Preparation of Financial ¢rep
by Public Banks, Regulations Governing the Preparatf Financial Reports by Securities Firms and
the 2013 version of the International Financial &®&pg Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRS (IFRIG)ddnterpretations of IAS (SIC)

Rule No. 1030010325 and Rule No. 10310006010 istyethe Financial Supervisory Commission
(FSC), stipulated that the Bank should apply thd32@ersion of IFRS, IAS, IFRIC and SIC
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed by the FSC ahé related amendments to the Regulations
Governing the Preparations of Financial ReportsPioyplic Banks and Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Bistarting January 1, 2015.

Except for the following, whenever applied, thaialiapplication of the above 2013 IFRSs versiod an
the related amendments to the Regulations GovetthiedgPreparation of Financial Reports by Public
Banks and Regulations Governing the Preparatidriredincial Reports by Securities Firms would not
have any material impact on the Bank’s accountuigies:

1) IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Egtti

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is apfgdida entities that have interests in subsidiaries
joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsaliddtactured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive thdindrcurrent standards.

2) IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidancefiovalue measurements. It defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valued aequires disclosures about fair value

measurements. The disclosure requirements in [ER&e more extensive than those required in
the current standards. For example, quantitatind gqualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently requifedfinancial instruments only will be extended by

IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities witliénscope.

The fair value measurements under IFRS 13 will ppgli@d prospectively from January 1, 2015.
Refer to Note 38 for related disclosures.

3) Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of ltems di€dtComprehensive Income”

The amendments to IAS 1 requires items of otherprelrensive income to be grouped into those
items that (1) will not be reclassified subsequeidl profit or loss; and (2) may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss. Income taxes dated items of other comprehensive income are
grouped on the same basis. Under current IASetetivere no such requirements.

The Bank retrospectively apply the above amendmstaising in 2015. Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss are remeasurementthe defined benefit plans and share of the
remeasurements arising from defined benefit plgnassociates accounted for using the equity
method. Items expected to be reclassified to prafiloss are the exchange differences on
translating foreign operations, unrealized gaimsggs) on available-for-sale financial assets and
share of the other comprehensive income (excepshibee of the remeasurements of the defined
benefit plans) of associates accounted for usiegetijuity method. However, the application of
the above amendments will not result in any impawt the net profit for the year, other
comprehensive income for the year (net of incomx, @and total comprehensive income for the
year.

-11 -



4) Revision to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

Revised IAS 19 requires the recognition of charigedefined benefit obligations and in the fair
value of plan assets when they occur, and heneenglies the “corridor approach” permitted under
current IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition doft g@rvice costs. The revision requires all
remeasurements of the defined benefit plans to dmognized immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pensgsetaor liability to reflect the full value of the
plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interestt and expected return on plan assets used in
current I1AS 19 are replaced with a “net interestioaint, which is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liabibityasset. In addition, the revised IAS 19 intrazghuc
certain changes in the presentation of the deflmakfit cost, and also includes more extensive
disclosures.

On initial application of the revised IAS 19, theanges in cumulative employee benefit costs as of
December 31, 2013 resulting from the retrospectipplication are adjusted to provision for
employee benefits and retained earnings; In addiiio preparing the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015, the Bank would etddip present 2014 comparative information
about the sensitivity of the defined benefit oliga.

The impact on the prior year is set out below:

Adjustments

Arising from
As Originally Initial
Stated Application Retrospected

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity
December 31, 2014
Total effect on provision for employee

benefits $ 7988477 $ 2,144 $ 7,990,621
Total effect on retained earnings $ 40,732,387 $ (2,144) $ 40,730,243
Total effect on equity $ 150,312,781 $ (2,144) $ 150,310,637
January 1, 2014
Total effect on provision for employee

benefits $ 8,004,378 $ 3,216 $ 8,007,594
Total effect on retained earnings $ 36,239,090 $ (3,216) $ 36,235,874
Total effect on equity $ 139,563,888 $ (3,216) $ 139,560,672

Impact on total comprehensive income
and earnings per share

For the year ended on December 31, 2014

Total effect on operating expense $ 21644593 $ (1,072) $ 21,643,521
Total effect on net income fortheyear $ 10,127,487 $ 1,072 $ 10,128,559
Total effect on total comprehensive

income for the year $ 10,048,878 $ 1,072 $ 10,049,950

Basic earnings per share (New Taiwan
dollars) $ 1.45 $ 0.01 $ 1.46

-12 -



b. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed by @€ F

The Bank has not applied the following New IFRSsuél by the IASB but not yet endorsed by the
FSC. As of the date the financial statements vaet@orized for issue, the FSC has not announced

their effective dates.

New IFRSs

Effective Date
Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “Mandatory Effexdate of
IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures”

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contrdruof Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint et

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 “Invesinimtities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception”

Amendment to IFRS 11 “Accounting for Acquisitionfslaterests in
Joint Operations”

IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 16 “Leases”

Amendment to IAS 1 “Disclosure Initiative”

Amendment to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

Amendments to IAS 12 “Recognition of Deferred TassAts for
Unrealized Losses”

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of@eptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization”

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 “Agriculture: BeaPlants”

Amendment to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans: Emm@ey
Contributions”

Amendment to IAS 27 “Equity Method in Separate Ririal
Statements”

July 1, 2014 (Note 2)
July 1, 2014

January 1, 2016 (Note 3)
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018

To be determined by IASB
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
July 1, 2014

January 1, 2016

Amendment to IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets: Recabdée Amount January 1, 2014

Disclosures for Non-financial Assets”

Amendment to IAS 39 “Novation of Derivatives andnfinuation of
Hedge Accounting”

IFRIC 21 “Levies”

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

Note 1. Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&€ effective for annual periods beginning on

or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The amendment to IFRS 2 applies to shaseebpayment transactions with grant date on or
after July 1, 2014; the amendment to IFRS 3 applidmisiness combinations with acquisition
date on or after July 1, 2014; the amendment toSIFR is effective immediately; the
remaining amendments are effective for annual gereeginning on or after July 1, 2014.

Note 3: The amendment to IFRS 5 is applied prospgtto changes in a method of disposal that
occur in annual periods beginning on or after Jania2016; the remaining amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or afi@nuary 1, 2016.
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The initial application of the above New IFRSs, waeer applied, would not have any material impact
on the Bank’s accounting policies, except for théofving:

1) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Recognition and measurement of financial assets

With regards to financial assets, all recognizedricial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurethare subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value.

For the Bank's debt instruments that have contedctash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount tautding, their classification and measurement are
as follows:

a) For debt instruments, if they are held within aibess model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, the financial assets arasomed at amortized cost and are assessed for
impairment continuously with impairment loss recagd in profit or loss, if any. Interest
revenue is recognized in profit or loss by using dffective interest method;

b) For debt instruments, if they are held withibuwsiness model whose objective is achieved by
both the collecting of contractual cash flows ahd selling of financial assets, the financial
assets are measured at fair value through othepretransive income (FVTOCI) and are
assessed for impairment. Interest revenue is reped in profit or loss by using the effective
interest method, and other gain or loss shall lsegmized in other comprehensive income,
except for impairment gains or losses and foreixghange gains and losses. When the debt
instruments are derecognized or reclassified, timutative gain or loss previously recognized
in other comprehensive income is reclassified femuity to profit or loss.

Except for above, all other financial assets areagueed at fair value through profit or loss.

However, the Bank may make an irrevocable electiopresent subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held tfrading) in other comprehensive income, with

only dividend income generally recognized in profit loss. No subsequent impairment

assessment is required, and the cumulative gainloss previously recognized in other

comprehensive income cannot be reclassified fromtyetp profit or loss.

The impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires that impairment loss on financéaleds is recognized by using the “Expected Credit
Losses Model”. The credit loss allowance is regfliifor financial assets measured at amortized
cost, financial assets mandatorily measured at FMJ @ase receivables, contract assets arising
from IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Custorhetsrtain written loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. A loss allowanedie 12-month expected credit losses is required
for a financial asset if its credit risk has natreased significantly since initial recognition. 1@ss
allowance for full lifetime expected credit lossesequired for a financial asset if its credikrizas
increased significantly since initial recognitiondais not low. However, a loss allowance for full
lifetime expected credit losses is required fodéraeceivables that do not constitute a financing
transaction.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired finah@ssets, the Bank takes into account the
expected credit losses on initial recognition itcekating the credit-adjusted effective interegera
Subsequently, any changes in expected losses amgnieed as a loss allowance with a
corresponding gain or loss recognized in profiioss.

-14 -



2)

3)

4)

Amendment to IAS 36 “Recoverable Amount Disctesuor Non-financial Assets”

In issuing IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, théSB\made consequential amendment to the
disclosure requirements in IAS 36 “Impairment o5A&”, introducing a requirement to disclose in
every reporting period the recoverable amount ofaaset or each cash-generating unit. The
amendment clarifies that such disclosure of readbler amounts is required only when an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversemhgltine period. Furthermore, the Bank is
required to disclose the discount rate used in orea®nts of the recoverable amount based on fair
value less costs of disposal measured using anirealele technique.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 establishes principles for recognizing nexethat apply to all contracts with customers,
and will supersedes IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Caomdfion Contracts” and a number of
revenue-related interpretations.

When applying IFRS 15, the Bank shall recognizemnere by applying the following steps:

Identify the contract with the customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the coatra

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performasioigations in the contracts; and
Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies apugnce obligation.

When IFRS 15 is effective, the Bank may elect tplyghis Standard either retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented or retrospectiweith the cumulative effect of initially applying
this Standard recognized at the date of initialiagpon.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 sets out the accounting treatment for easel has superseded IAS 17 “Leases” and a
number of related interpretations.

Under IFRS 16, if the Bank is a lessee, it shoattbgnize in the balance sheets right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all leases on the balastoeets except for low-value and short-term leases.
The Bank may elect to apply the operating leasewating method under IAS 17 to the low-value
and short-term leases. In the statements of cdrapsive income, the Bank should present the
depreciation expense charged on the right-of-uset agparately from the interest expense accrued
on the lease liability; interest is computed byngséffective interest method. In the statements of
cash flows, cash payments for the principal portadnthe lease liability are classified under
financing activities; cash payments for the intepestion are classified under operating activities

The application of IFRS 16 is not expected to heawveaterial impact on the accounting principles of
the Bank as a lessor.

When IFRS 16 becomes effective, the Bank may etectapply this Standard either (a)
retrospectively to each prior reporting period preed, or (b) retrospectively, with the cumulative
effect of the initial application of this Standastognized at the date of initial application.

Except for the above impact, as of the date thenfital statements were authorized for issue, thek Ba
was continuing to assess the possible impact tigagpplication of other standards and interpretatio

will have on the Bank’s financial position and fintgal performance, and will disclose this impact
when the assessment is completed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared irrdacoe with the Regulations Governing the Preparati
of Financial Reports by Public Banks and the Reitpria Governing the Preparation of Financial Report
by Securities Firms.

Basis of Preparation

The parent company only statements have been pcbpar the historical cost basis except for findncia
instruments that are measured at fair value.

The fair value measurements are grouped into Lelvéts 3 based on the degree to which the fair value
measurement inputs are observable and the sigmcaf the inputs to the fair value measuremerntsin
entirety, which are described as follows:

a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustedytive markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quotedeggrincluded within Level 1 that are observabletfar
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priyes indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for gwetor liability.

When preparing its financial statements, the Basé&duequity method to account for its investment in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. dierofor the amounts of the net profit for the yezther
comprehensive income for the year and total eqoityhe parent company only financial statementbeo
the same with the amounts attributable to the owafighe Bank in its consolidated financial statetaen
adjustments arising from the differences in acdogntreatment between parent company only basis and
consolidated basis were made to investments acethfot by equity method, share of profit or loss of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, sifasther comprehensive income of subsidiaries, @atas

and joint ventures and related equity items, asgjate, in the parent company only financialestants.

The financial statements also include accounthefBank’s Head Office, OBU, and all branches. All
interoffice account balances and transactions bhaea eliminated.

Foreign-currency Transactions

The Bank records foreign-currency transactions lie trespective currencies in which these are
denominated. Every month-end, foreign currencyiime and expenses are translated into New Taiwan
dollars at the prevailing exchange rates. At mamtl, monetary assets and liabilities denominated i
foreign currencies are reported using the prevgilexchange rates, and exchange differences are
recognized in profit or loss. Nonmonetary assetslibilities measured at fair value are translatsing

the prevailing exchange rates at month-end. Ta#insl differences on nonmonetary assets and ligsili
measured at fair value are recognized in profiloss, except for translation difference arisingniro
nonmonetary items of which the change in fair valigrecognized in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the translation differences are alsmgmized directly in other comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are cless#és carried at cost are recognized at the egeheate

on the transaction date.

In preparing the financial statements, foreign apens’ financial statements are translated afdlewing
rates: Assets and liabilities - the prevailing leege rates on the balance sheet date; and incothe a
expenses - at the average exchange rate for the yEanslation difference net of income tax isoreied

as “other comprehensive income” and accumulatedjisity.
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Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Since the operating cycle in the banking indusagrmot be reasonably identified, accounts includetthé
Bank’s financial statements are not classified wsenit or noncurrent. Nevertheless, these accamts
properly categorized in accordance with the nadfieach account and sequenced by liquidity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalentsrisentash on hand and demand deposits, togetter wi
short-term, highly liquid investments that are iigaconvertible to a known amount of cash and angjext

to an insignificant risk of changes in value. e tstatement of cash flows, cash and cash equisalen
comprise cash and cash equivalents defined indlanbe sheet, due from the Central Bank and catido

to other banks, securities purchased under reggiements, and call loans to securities firms that
correspond to the definition of cash and cash edemis in IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statements,” as endolsed
the FSC.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are griped when the Bank becomes a party to the cdoahc
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities areiafiy measured at fair value. Transaction costt tire
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuk fimancial assets and financial liabilities (othtbran
financial assets and financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss) are added to or destlidrom
the fair value of the financial assets or finandiabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognitio
Transaction costs directly attributable to the &itjan of financial assets or financial liabiliieat fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immigdlyain profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financiab&sare recognized and derecognized on a tradéasite

a. Measurement category
Financial assets are classified into the followoajegories: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), available-for-sale (AFShéincial assets, held-to-maturity financial assats a
loans and receivables. The classification dependbe nature and purpose of the financial assets a
is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL whenfittancial asset is either held for trading or
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as designated &/aPL upon initial recognition if:

e Such designation eliminates or significantly rezkica measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

® The financial asset forms part of a group of fitiahassets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated oin @afae basis, in accordance with the Bank’s
documented risk management or investment strai@gy,information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

* The contract contains one or more embedded demgaso that the entire hybrid (combined)
contract can be designated as at fair value thrpugfit or loss.
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2)

3)

4)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair valéh any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Thiegaén or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned orittaacial asset. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 38.

Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that gineredesignated as AFS or are not classified Jas (a
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity finah@ssets or (c) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. AFS financial assets amdesl at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is determined in the manner describddaite 38.

Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetarynfitedl assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates, interest income calculated usiegetfective interest method and dividends on AFS
equity investments are recognized in profit or los®ther changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognized in other comprefemscome and will be reclassified to profit or
loss when the investment is disposed or is deteranio be impaired.

Cash dividends on AFS equity instruments are reizedrin profit or loss when the Bank’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Stock diuideare recorded as an increase in the number of
shares held and do not affect investment incomédie cbst per share is recalculated on the basis of
the new number of investee’s shares held.

AFS financial assets that do not have a quoted ehgrfce in an active market and have a fair
value that cannot be reliably measured and deviesitthat are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments arasueed at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the balance sheet date and are recogniaeskparate line item as financial assets chrrie
at cost. These financial assets are measurediravdtes if the fair values can be reliably

measured subsequently. The difference betweegimgramount and fair value is recognized in

profit or loss or other comprehensive income. WIlan AFS financial asset is considered
impaired, the losses are recognized to profit 8s.l0

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivatfinancial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates that the Bank thaspositive intent and ability to hold to
maturity.

After initial recognition, held-to-maturity finarali assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans andva&lskes (including cash and cash equivalents,
due from the Central Bank and call loans to othemkis, receivables, debt instruments with no
active markets) are measured at amortized costgusia effective interest method less any
impairment.
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b.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valueugh profit or loss, are assessed for indicatérs o
impairment at the end of each reporting period.nafcial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result af on more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimatadre cash flows of the investment have been aftect
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the asset issuand debtor;
® The financial assets becoming overdue;
e Probability that the debtor will enter into banfitcy or undergo financial reorganization.

Amortized cost of the presentation of financialeass(loans and receivables) that are individually
assessed had no objective evidence of impairmenfuather assessed collectively for impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment of a portfolioreteivables could include the Bank’s past diffigult
in collecting payments and an increase in the nunolbedelayed payments, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditiored tdorrelate with defaults on financial assets.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost,atm@unt of the impairment loss recognized is the
difference between the asset's carrying amountthadpresent value of estimated future cash flows
with consideration to the collaterals and guaratdescounted at the financial asset’s originaetfie
interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortized cosigifmpairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring aftez impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed throughitpoofloss to the extent that the carrying amount o
the investment at the date the impairment is rexedoes not exceed what the amortized cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognized.

For AFS equity instruments, a significant or prajed decline in the fair value of the security beltsv
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impant.

When an AFS financial asset is considered impairathulative gains or losses previously recognized
in other comprehensive income are reclassifiedaditpor loss.

For AFS equity instruments, impairment losses fneslly recognized in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair valsigbsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in
other comprehensive income. For AFS debt instrasp@mpairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the faédue of the investment can be objectively relatedr
event occurring after the recognition of the impeint loss.

For financial assets that are carried at costjritpairment loss is measured as the difference lestwe
the asset’s carrying amount and the present vdltleeoestimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar finad@sset. This impairment loss will not be reverise
subsequent periods.

Impairment loss on financial asset is recognizedduolucing its carrying amount through the use of an
allowance account. When financial assets are dereil uncollectible, they are written off agaims t
allowance account. Recoveries of amounts prewousitten off are credited to the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of trnalhce account are recognized in profit and loss.

Under FSC guidelines, the Bank should classify icr@gsets as sound credit assets or unsound credit
assets, with the unsound assets further categosizexpecial mention, substandard, with collectgbili
highly doubtful and uncollectible, on the basis tbé customers’ financial position, valuation of
collaterals and the length of time the principg@agments or interest payments have become overdue.

-19 -



The Bank made 100%, 50%, 10%, 2% and 1% provisfonsredits deemed uncollectible, with
collectability highly doubtful, substandard, spécigention and sound credit assets (excluding assets
that represent claims against an ROC governmemicgyjerespectively, as minimum provisions. For
the sound credit assets, minimum provisions wegeired be contributed before December 31, 2014.
In addition, the Bank was required to make provisiof at least 1.5% each for the sound credit asset
on loans granted to Mainland China clients (inatgdshort-term trading financing) and for mortgage
loans granted for housing acquisition, renovatiod eonstruction before December 31, 2015 and 2016,
respectively.

Credits deemed uncollectible may be written othé write-off is approved by the board of directors
c. Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only whencontractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financi@etsind substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If thalBatains substantially all the risks and rewanfls
ownership of a transferred financial asset, thekBaontinues to recognize the financial asset asd al
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the peatsereceived.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its etyiréhe difference between the asset’s carryinguanrtso
and the sum of the consideration received, recivabd the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and aclaealin equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Bank classifies the debt and equity instrumésgged either as financial liabilities or as eguit
accordance with the substance of the contractuakagents and the definitions of a financial liabibr an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidenaesesidual interest in the assets of an entitgraft
deducting all its liabilities. Equity instrumenssued by the Bank are recognized at the proceegs/ed,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instrumentedegnized and deducted directly in equity. Nmgai
or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the pase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Bank’s eguity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

a. Subsequent measurement

Except for the cases stated below, all financabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method:

1) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPLemhthe financial liability is either held for tragj
or designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as designatesia FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e Such designation eliminates or significantly reskica measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
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e The financial liability forms part of a group dahéncial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated fair value basis, in accordance with the
Bank's documented risk management or investmerategty, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e The contract contains one or more embedded demgaso that the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) can be designated as at faiue through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at faialwe, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Thiegaén or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financiddility. For a financial liability designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, the amount ofiohes in fair value attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability is presented in othebpmprehensive income, and it will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Tla#ngr loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income will be transferred to retained earnings mwitee financial liabilities are derecognized. If
this accounting treatment related to credit risluldacreate or enlarge an accounting mismatch, all
changes in fair value of the liability are presenite profit or loss. Fair value is determined e t
manner described in Note 38.

2) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Baek rent designated as at FVTPL and are
subsequently measured at the higher of (a) the atnaofuthe obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisionsptingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”;

or (b) the amount initially recognized less, whappropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with revenue recognition policies.

b. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities only emhthe Bank’s obligations are discharged or
cancelled or they expire. The difference betwees tarrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid (includester of non-cash assets and liabilities assuised)
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valaethe date the derivative contracts are entertedaind are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value aththlance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss immediately. If thairf value of a derivative is a positive number, the
derivative is carried as an financial asset anldffair value is a negative number, the derivaiivearried

as a financial liability.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host cotdgrace treated as separate derivatives when they me
the definition of a derivative, their risks and caeristics are not closely related to those ef hiost
contracts and the contracts are not measured aPEVT

Overdue Loans

Loans and other credits (including accrued int@bstt are overdue for at least six months aresiflad as
overdue loans in accordance with the guidelinegdday the FSC.

Overdue loans (except other credits) are classégediscounts and loans, and the remaining arsifiaks
as other financial assets.
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Securities Purchased/Sold Under Resell/Repurchasefeements

Securities purchased under resell agreements andtfs sold under repurchase agreements areajgner
treated as collateralized financing transactioriaterest earned on resell agreements or interestred on
repurchase agreements is recognized as interestuewr interest expense over the life of eacheageat.
Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and j@ntves are accounted for by the equity method.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries (including structured entities) ar ehtities controlled by the Bank.

Under the equity method, the investment is inifiadicognized at cost and the carrying amount iseased

or decreased to recognize the Bank's share of bt jor loss and other comprehensive income of the
subsidiary after the date of acquisition. Besides,Bank also recognizes the Bank’s share of hiaage

in other equity of the subsidiary.

Changes in the Bank’s ownership interests in sidoéd that do not result in the Bank’s loss oftoain
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equatysactions. Any difference between the carrying
amounts of the investment and the fair value ofcthresideration paid or received is recognized tliréo
equity.

When the Bank’s share of losses of a subsidiarnalegor exceeds its interest in that subsidiary ¢whi
includes any carrying amount of the investment ubsidiary accounted for by the equity method and
long-term interests that, in substance, form pathe Bank’s net investment in the subsidiary), Bank
continues recognizing its share of further losses.

The acquisition cost in excess of the acquisitiatedair value of the identifiable net assets aeglis
recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortizedThe acquisition-date fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired in excess of the attipn cost is recognized immediately in profitloss.

When the Bank ceases to have control over a sapgidiny retained investment is measured at fdireva
at that date and the difference between the prewaurying amount of the subsidiary attributableh®
retained interest and its fair value is includedha determination of the gain or loss. Furtheandne
Bank accounts for all amounts previously recogniredther comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary on the same basis as would be requiteée Bank had directly disposed of the relatecisssr
liabilities.

Profits and losses from downstream transactionk witsubsidiary are eliminated in full. Profits and
losses from upstream with a subsidiary and sidestregansactions between subsidiaries are recogmzed
the Bank’s financial statements only to the exthinterests in the subsidiary that are not reldtethe
Bank.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Bank hgsificant influence and that is neither a subsigiaor
an interest in a joint venture. Joint venture jeiat arrangement whereby the Bank and other gmthiat
have joint control of the arrangement have rightdhe net assets of the arrangement.

Under the equity method, investment in an assooiagejoint ventures entity is initially recognizaticost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Bank’sesbiathe profit or loss and other comprehensiveiine
of the associate or jointly controlled entity. TRank also recognizes the changes in the Bank'sesifa
equity of associates or joint ventures.
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When the Bank subscribes for additional new shafethe associate or joint ventures at a percentage
different from its existing ownership percentadee tesulting carrying amount of the investmentedsf
from the amount of the Bank’s proportionate intereghe associate or joint ventures. The Bankbns
such a difference as an adjustment to investmeittstie corresponding amount charged or credited to
capital surplus. If the Bank’s ownership interissteduced due to the additional subscription efrikw
shares of the associate or joint ventures, the gotiopate amount of the gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relatimthat associate or joint ventures is reclassifo
profit or loss on the same basis as would be reduirthe investee had directly disposed of thateel
assets or liabilities. When the adjustment shdadddebited to capital surplus, but the capital Isisrp
recognized from investments accounted for by thétggnethod is insufficient, the shortage is dedite
retained earnings.

When the Bank’s share of losses of an associatejoint ventures equals or exceeds its intereshan
associate or joint ventures, which includes anyyaag amount of the investment accounted for by the
equity method and long-term interests that, in sulze, form part of the Bank’s net investment ia th
associate or joint ventures, the Bank discontimaesgnizing its share of further losses. Additldnases
and liabilities are recognized only to the extédaittthe Bank has incurred legal obligations, orstarttive
obligations, or made payments on behalf of that@ase or joint ventures.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Bauskare of the net fair value of the identifiablesets
and liabilities of an associate or a joint venturesognized at the date of acquisition is recoghias
goodwill, which is included within the carrying ammt of the investment and is not amortized. Any
excess of the Bank’s share of the net fair valu¢hefidentifiable assets and liabilities over tlostcof
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized dratedy in profit or loss.

The entire carrying amount of the investment (idilg goodwill) is tested for impairment as a singdset
by comparing its recoverable amount with its caigyamount. Any impairment loss recognized forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Aayersal of that impairment loss is recognizeth®
extent that the recoverable amount of the investmgnsequently increases.

The Bank discontinues the use of the equity mefhmd the date on which its investment ceases tarbe
associate and a joint venture. Any retained imgest is measured at fair value at that date andaihe
value is regarded as its fair value on initial igition as a financial asset. The difference betwthe
previous carrying amount of the associate anddhm yenture attributable to the retained inteedd its

fair value is included in the determination of tp@in or loss on disposal of the associate anddim |
venture. The Bank accounts for all amounts preshiouecognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate and the joint venturéhensame basis as would be required if that astsobiad
directly disposed of the related assets or liakdit If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment joiat venture becomes an investment in an assgdiae
Bank continues to apply the equity method and doésemeasure the retained interest.

When the Bank transacts with its associate or jemmtures, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venturesracognized in the Bank’s financial statementy ¢m
the extent of interests in the associate or joamtures that are not related to the Bank.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to eamials and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties also include land held for a currentigetermined future use.

Investment properties are measured initially att,coeluding transaction costs. Subsequent taainit

recognition, investment properties are measuredost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Depreciation is recognized ugligstraight-line method.
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Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of theparty is calculated as the difference betweenntdte
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of tbetasd is included in profit or loss in the yeamiich
the property is derecognized.

Properties and Equipment

Properties and equipment are initially recognizédcast and subsequently measured at costs less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairfossés.

Land for self-use is not depreciated. Depreciat®mecognized using the straight-line method. hEac
significant part is depreciated separately. Thamesed useful lives, residual values and depretiat
method are reviewed at the end of each reportingpghewith the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Any gain or loss recognized on the disposal oreetent of an item of property and equipment is the
difference between the sales proceeds and theirmguaynount of the asset and is included in profitoss
in the period in which the asset is derecognized.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenexégrths of the lease transfer substantially alridles and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All otherdease classified as operating leases.

The Bank as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recogniretevenues over the lease periods on a straight-lin
basis. Contingent rents arising under operatinagde are recognized as income in the year in whah
are incurred.

Lease incentives offered in the operating lease raoegnized as an asset. The aggregate cost of
incentives is recognized as a reduction of rent@me on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Bank as a lessee

Lease payments under an operating lease are expemsa straight-line basis over the lease period.
Under operating lease, contingent rentals are rézed as expenses at current year.

Lease incentives received for operating leasesem@gnized under liabilities. The aggregate beérufi
incentives is recognized as a reduction of rengpérse on a straight-line basis.

When the Bank sales and leasebacks a propertyexitess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount
resulted from the sale of the property is defeard amortized over the lease term regardless ohtipg
lease or finance lease. For indefinite lease tdrenexcess is amortized over 10 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill (part of intangible assets) from businegsnbination is recorded at acquisition cost and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulatedt e

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwillllecated to each of the Bank’s cash-generatifitg on

groups of cash-generating units (referred to as-gaserating units (CGU)) that is expected to hiefreim
the synergies of the combination.
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In testing assets for impairment, the Bank comp#rescarrying amounts of operating segments (CGUs
with allocated goodwill) to their recoverable amtsuon a yearly basis (or when impairment indicators
exist). CGUs with allocated goodwill arise fronetburrent year should be tested for impairmentreefo
the end of the year. When the recoverable amdu@GdJs is below the carrying amount, an impairment
loss should be recognized to reduce first the oagrgmount of goodwill of the CGU and then the yiag
amounts of other assets of the CGU proportionate®ny impairment loss should be directly recognized
as loss in the current year, and subsequent réwensapairment loss is not allowed.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating uné, amount attributable to goodwill is included et
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

Separate acquisition

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that aeguired separately are initially measured at emst
subsequently measured at cost less accumulatedtization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basiét year-end, the Bank examines its estimatethef
useful lives, residual values and amortization métlef the assets, and any changes in estimates are
accounted for prospectively. Unless the Bank etsperdispose of an intangible asset before theognd

its useful life, the residual value of an intangiblsset with limited useful life is estimated tazbeo.

Acquisition as part of a business combination

Intangible asset acquired through business conibmat measured at its fair value on the acquisitate,
and is recognized separately from goodwill. Subeatjto initial recognition, they are measured loa t
same basis as intangible assets that are acqeipadssely.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of aangible asset, measured as the difference bettixeen
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounteo#iset, are recognized in profit or loss wheratisets
is derecognized.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets OtherThan Goodwill

At the balance sheet date, the Bank reviews thg/ingramounts of its tangible and intangible assets
(except goodwill) for any indication of impairmeluss. If any such indication exists, the recovkrab
amount of the asset is estimated in order to déterthe extent of the impairment loss. Corporatets
are allocated to the individual cash-generatingsumi a reasonable and consistent basis of altotatiThe
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value tdkng costs or value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-géngrunit is estimated to be less than its cagyin
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its rec@ve amount. If asset impairment loss revetbes,
increase in the carrying amount resulting from reakis credited to earnings. However, loss ralers
should not be more than the carrying amount (nelepfeciation or amortization) had the impairmessl|
not been recognized.

Foreclosed Collaterals

Foreclosed collaterals (part of other assets)egerded at the fair value on recognition and reetrat the
lower of cost or net fair value as of the balanbee$ dates. Net fair value falling below book ealu
indicates impairment, and impairment loss shouldrémognized. If the net fair value recovers, the
recovery of impairment loss is recognized in gainBor foreclosed collaterals that should have been
disposed of in the statutory term, unless the digpperiod is prolonged, additional provision fosdes
should be made and impairment loss should be rézedjras required under a FSC directive.
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Provisions

Provisions are the best estimate of the consideraéquired to settle the present obligation atbidlance
sheet date, taking into account the risks and taiogies on the obligation. A provision is measlosing
the cash flows estimated to settle the presengaiidin.

When some or all of the economic benefits requicesettle a provision are expected to be recovioea
a third party, a receivable is recognized as amtasst is virtually certain that reimbursementite
received and the amount of the receivable can lzsuned reliably.

Recognition of Revenue

Interest revenue on loans is recorded on an acbask. Under the guidance of the FSC, no interest
revenue is recognized on loans that are classifsedverdue loans. The interest revenue on thess e
recognized upon collection of the loans and credits

Service fees are recognized when a major parteoé#innings process is completed and cash is caflect

Dividend income from investments is recognized wtienstockholder’s right to receive payment hasbee
established (provided that it is probable thatdbenomic benefits will flow to the Bank and the amioof
income can be measured reliably).

Service that results in award credits for customenslier the Bank's award scheme, is accounteddor a
multiple element revenue transactions and the value of the consideration received or receivable i
allocated between the service rendered and thedasvadits granted. The consideration allocateth¢o
award credits is measured by reference to theivédue. Such consideration is not recognizec@snue

at the time of the initial sale transaction butdeserred and recognized as revenue when the awaddsc
are redeemed and the Bank’s obligations have hdfilfefi.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term and non-discounted employee benefitsemm@gnized as expenses in the current year agsgrv
are rendered.

Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement ben@fins are recognized as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the coutions.

Defined benefit costs (including service cost, img¢rest and remeasurement) under the defined ibenef
retirement benefit plans are determined using ttogegted unit credit method. Service cost and net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (d3s@e recognized as employee benefits expenseipdriod
they occur. Remeasurement, comprising actuarisisgand losses and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is recognized in other corhpresive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensivenmgs reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Net defined benefit liability (asset) represents dlctual deficit (surplus) in the Bank’s definechékét plan.

Any surplus resulting from this calculation is lted to the present value of any refunds from tlaaplor
reductions in future contributions to the plans.
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Preferential interest deposits for employees

The Bank provides preferential interest depositcuaent and retired employees, and these deposits,
including payments of the preferential interesta$#{s, are within certain amounts. The preferénsiges
for employees’ deposits in excess of market ratelshbe treated as employee benefits.

Under the Guidelines Governing the Preparationioércial Reports by Public Banks, the Bank should
follow the requirement of IAS 19 “Employee Benefiendorsed by FSC to determine the excess interest
on the preferential interest deposits of retire@leyees by applying an actuarial valuation methdaknv

the employees retire. The actuarial assumptioasldtbe in accordance with the requirements sehby
authorities.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized the earlier of when the Bank can no longer aveiw
the offer of the termination benefit and when tlamBrecognizes any related restructuring costs.

Share-based Payment

The Bank's employees subscribed for the reserveaeshof Taiwan Cooperative Financial Holding
Company, Ltd. (TCFHC) in accordance with the Finalnidolding Company Act, and the Bank recognized
the fair value of the stock options under salapesses and under capital surplus for share-basedepa
on the grant date, i.e., the date when the Bankitaremployees made an agreement for the empldgees
subscribe for TCFHC's shares.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the teently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional &xX10% of unappropriated earnings is provided for a
income tax in the year the shareholders approvetain the earnings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are addo or deducted from the current year’s tax [siow.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differertmetsveen the carrying amounts of assets and liakili
in the financial statements and the correspondirdases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized dll taxable temporary differences. Deferreddasgets
are generally recognized for all deductible tempotdifferences and unused loss carryforwards to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profitslwié available against which these deductible teanyo
differences can be used. If the temporary diffeeearises from the initial recognition (other thama
business combination) of assets and liabilitiea transaction that affects neither the taxableitpnof the
accounting profit, the resulting deferred tax assdiability is not recognized. In addition, afdeed tax
liability is not recognized on taxable temporarifetence arising from the initial recognition ofagwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxabdenporary differences associated with investméants
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in ya@ntures, except where the Bank is able to cortr®l
reversal of the temporary difference and it is piab that the temporary difference will not reverséhe
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arisog fieductible temporary differences associated svith
investments and interests are only recognizededceitent that it is probable that there will befisignt
taxable profits against which to use the benefitthe temporary differences and these differences a
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wedeeach balance sheet date and reduced to tha exte
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taeaprofits will be available to allow all or part the asset to

be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferssdassset is also reviewed each balance sheet mte a
recognized to the to the extent that it has begorabable that future taxable profit will allow tdeferred

tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measurd¢beatax rates that are expected to apply in thmgen
which the liability is settled or the asset realizeased on tax rates (and tax laws) that have d&e&cted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reportergpd. The measurement of deferred tax liabilited
assets reflects the tax consequences based onattmeemin which the Bank expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carnangpunt of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in poofitoss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or diyentequity, in which case, the current and defibtex

are also recognized in other comprehensive incanwdrectly in equity, respectively. Where curréax

or deferred taxes arises from the initial accounfor a business combination, the tax effect isuithed in

the accounting for the business combination.

TCFHC and its subsidiaries elected to file consabd tax returns for periods starting in 2012. sy,
since the Bank applied the accounting treatmenttiomed in the preceding paragraph to income tay, an
distribution of cash payments and receipts amoegctinsolidated group members is recorded as current
tax assets or current tax liabilities.

Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for ugirgacquisition method. Acquisition-related caats
generally recognized as expense as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sumetdmsideration transferred and the fair valuehef t
acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in tlogaire (if any) over the net of the acquisitionaedatmounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the lisédiassumed.

Business combination involving entities under comrontrol is not accounted for by acquisition metho
but accounted for at the carrying amounts of thities. Prior period comparative information ineth
financial statements is restated as if a businestbmation involving entities under common contnaed
already occurred in that period.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES O F ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Bank’s accounting pols;izhich are described in Note 4, the Bank’s mamege

is required to make judgments, estimates and assmmspabout the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atkeurces. The estimates and associated assusptien
based on historical experience and other factas dahe considered relevant. Actual results maferdif
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redewn an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in whictettgnate is revised if the revision affects omhigttperiod
or in the period of the revision and future periddbe revision affects both current and futureipds.
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Unless stated in other notes, the following are thiéical judgments, assumptions and estimation
uncertainty estimations that the Bank’s managenmexst made in the process of applying the Bank’'s
accounting policies and that have the most sigmificeffect on the amounts recognized in the firanci
statements:

a.

Impairment losses on loans

The Bank monthly assesses loans collectively. Wistarmining whether an impairment loss should

be recognized, the Bank mainly seeks for observabigence that indicates impairment. Obijective

evidence of impairment of a portfolio of loans amdeivables could include the Bank’s past diffigult

in collecting payments and an increase in the nunolbedelayed payments, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditiorag torrelate with defaults on loans and receivables
The management uses past loss experience on #saetsave similar credit risk characteristics to

estimate the expected future cash flows. The Bawviews the methods and assumptions of cash flow
estimation regularly to eliminate the differencéviEen expected and actual loss.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments in an inactiv@rket or with no quoted market prices are
determined by valuation techniques. Under theseuwmistances, fair values are derived from
observable market data of other similar financsgdeds. When there are no observable inputs in the
market, the fair values of financial instruments astimated by making appropriate assumptions. The
Bank applies appropriate valuation models to detegnthe fair values of financial instruments
subjective to valuation techniques. All models ane-tuned to ensure the valuation results fairly
reflect actual market information and prices. TBa&nk’s management believes that the chosen
valuation technigues and assumptions used are @t in determining the fair value of financial
instruments.

For the fair value determination of financial instrents, refer to Note 38 to the financial statesent
Income tax

The Bank is required to make substantive estimatiesn calculating income tax. The final tax

assessment is based on considerable transactidnsaboulations.  When the final tax amount differs
from the amount on original recognition, the difiece affects the recognition of both current and
deferred income tax. The realizability of defertas assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differenceslvié available. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a matexiarsal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognized in profit or loss for the pdrin which such a reversal takes place.

Employment benefits

The calculation of the present value of post-emplent benefits and preferential rates for retired
employees’ deposits is based on the actuarialtrasder several assumptions. Any change in these
assumptions may affect the carrying amount of pagtoyment benefits and preferential rates interest
deposits plan for retired employees.

One of the estimates used for determining the @esipn costs (revenues) is discount rate. The Bank
determines appropriate discount rates at the emdcti year and estimates the present values a&futu
cash outflows resulting from fulfilling the post-playment obligation by the discount rates. Todoett
determine the discount rates, the Bank takes iotount the interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds or government bonds, with currencies the sasrbose of post-employment benefit payments,
and with durations that match those of the corredjpg pension liabilities.
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Other significant assumptions for post-employmesiigation are subject to current market condition.
Significant assumptions for the obligation of prefdial interest deposits for retired employee are
determined by the authorities.

e. Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requirea astimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has bedocated. The value in use calculation requires
management to estimate the future cash flows expect arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate presalue. Where the actual future cash flows ass le
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise

f. Impairment assessment on available-for-saletgduiestment

Objective evidences of the impairment of an avéaldbr-sale equity investment include the fair \&alu
of that investment falling significantly or constigrbelow the cost. Subjective judgments are negli
when assessing the impairment. The Bank’s managernasiders past market fluctuation, historical
prices of the investment and other factors thagcafthe performance of the industries to which the
investees belong to make the subjective judgments.

g. The valuation of provisions on financial guaegntontracts
Except for the minimum standards under certain Jdke Bank’s main basis for deciding the amounts
of provisions is whether there is any observablelence that the Bank has payment obligations to
compensate the losses of guarantee holders. Thke fgularly reviews the economic situation in
terms of defaults on debt repayments to reduceliffierence between the estimated and the actual
amounts of loss.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2015 2014
Cash on hand $ 21,450,116 $ 22,605,074
Notes and checks in clearing 9,279,476 14,207,885
Due from banks 11,712,959 5,216,076

42,442,551 $ 42,029,035

Reconciliations of cash and cash equivalents betireestatements of cash flows and the balancesshse
of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are shown in thers&tts of cash flows.

7. DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND CALL LOANS TO OTH ER BANKS

December 31

2015 2014
Reserves for deposits - account A $ 39,790,008 $ 34,584,333
Reserves for deposits - account B 64,299,766 61,768,836
Reserves for deposits - community financial initis 52,801,642 50,837,686
Reserves for deposits - foreign-currency deposits 318,069 292,232
(Continued)
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December 31

2015 2014
Deposits in the Central Bank $ 39,200,000 $ 39,200,000
Negotiable certificates of deposit in the CentrahB 443,715,000 461,665,000
Due from the Central Bank - others 8,815,848 7,694,909
Due from the Central Bank - central government age deposits 3,156,360 1,713,740
Call loans to banks 59,795,538 33,056,750

711,892,231 $ 690,813,486
(Concluded)

The deposit reserves are determined monthly atipbesl rates based on the average balances ousario
types of deposit accounts held by the Bank. Tlposie reserves are subject to withdrawal restmstjo
but deposit reserve - account A and foreign-cuyateposit reserves may be withdrawn anytime.

Under the guideline issued by the Central BankhefRepublic of China (CBC), the Bank should deposit

60 percent of the deposits of central governmeencigs in the CBC, and the deposits are subject to
withdrawal restrictions.

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2015 2014

Held-for-trading financial assets

Commercial paper $ 10,497,699 $ 33,541,140
Listed and emerging stocks - domestic 82,461 89,606
Government bonds - 250,519
Currency swap contracts 3,722,007 7,537,894
Cross-currency swap contracts 225,100 788,108
Forward contracts 209,482 795,203
Foreign-currency margin contracts 122,685 6,521
Currency option contracts - buy 66,725 237,293
Interest rate swap contracts 5,888 220
Futures exchange margins 4,029 5,092

14,936,076 43,251,596

Financial assets designated as at fair value thrpuofit or loss

Corporate bonds - 326,993
Bank debentures - 90,734

- 417,727
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo $ 14,936,076 $ 43,669,323

Held-for-trading financial liabilities

Currency swap contracts $ 1327544 $ 3,818,932
Forward contracts 330,601 1,209,990
Cross-currency swap contracts 231,737 778,608
Currency option contracts - sell 66,958 237,751
(Continued)
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December 31

2015 2014
Interest rate swap contracts $ 38,488 $ 16,788
Foreign-currency margin contracts 8,531 20,399
2,003,859 6,082,468
Financial liabilities designated as at fair valbetigh profit or loss
Bank debentures (Note 24) 12,703,063 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss $ 14,706,922 $ 6,082,468
(Concluded)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, some securitresuating to $5,124,914 thousand and $6,581,877
thousand, respectively, had been sold under repsecagreements.

The Bank enters into derivative transactions maialaccommodate customers’ needs and to manage its
exposure to adverse changes in exchange ratesiteneist rates. The Bank’s strategy for hedgindgnaga
risk is to avoid most of the market price risk asls flow risk.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the contractqnal) amounts of derivative transactions of Bargdtav
as follows:

December 31
2015 2014

Currency swap contracts $ 441,253,332 $ 451,023,013

Forward contracts 27,179,346 35,806,344
Interest rate swap contracts 15,152,000 3,135,010
Currency option contracts - sell 11,907,017 13,884,274
Currency option contracts - buy 11,907,017 13,811,464
Cross-currency swap contracts 6,639,328 25,450,445
Foreign-currency margin contracts 5,198,399 1,323,912

. SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS
Securities acquired for $209,592 thousand and $1788 thousand under resell agreements as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, will egbently be sold for $209,629 thousand and
$1,852,528 thousand, respectively.

. RECEIVABLES, NET

December 31

2015 2014
Accrued interest $ 5823806 $ 5,654,884
Acceptances 3,305,845 2,803,356
Credit cards 2,652,085 2,545,072
Receivable from merchant accounts in credit caudsless 557,158 710,985
Credits receivable 475,799 484 557
(Continued)
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December 31

2015 2014

Refundable deposits receivable in leasehold agneisme $ 272,993 % 272,993
Accounts receivable factored without recourse 216,084 384,088
Accounts receivable 194,481 180,528
Receivable on securities 3,136 184,944
Others 464,584 373,959
13,965,971 13,595,366

Less: Allowance for possible losses 596,764 521,198
$ 13,369,207 $ 13,074,168

(Concluded)

Credits receivable due to the merger with the FesrBaink of China on May 1, 2006 were recognized at
fair value of credits written off by the FarmersnRaof China in the past. The fair values were eatidd
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Financial Advisory Ser@o., Ltd.

The allowances for possible losses on receivaldrsept spot exchange receivable - foreign currencie
which amounted to $77 thousand and $10,115 thousaspectively) assessed for impairment as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

192}

Items . Allowance for . Allowance for
Receivables . | Receivables )
Possible Losses Possible Losse
Assessment of
With objective !nd|V|'duaI $ 464,354 $ 308,474 $ 402,533| $ 264,499
. impairment
evidence of
imoairment Assessment of
P collective 129,651 49,511 140,083 59,059
impairment
With no objectivgAssessment of
evidence of collective 13,371,889 238,779 13,042,635 197,640
impairment impairment
Total 13,965,894 596,764 13,585,251 521,198

The changes in allowance for possible losses anenswized below:

Balance, January 1
Provision for possible losses

Write-offs

Recovery of written-off receivables

For the Year Ended December 31

Effects of exchange rate changes and other changes

Balance, December 31
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$ 521,198

89,310
(14,096)
6

346

$ 596,764

2014
$ 538,956
103,020

(121,023)
245

$ 521,198



11. DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET

December 31

2015 2014

Bills discounted $ 2,004,757 $ 2,432,955
Overdraft

Unsecured 161,789 210,204

Secured 111,712 370,963
Import and export negotiations 542,432 743,226
Short-term loans

Unsecured 242,719,921 196,557,949

Accounts receivable financing 608,195 733,675

Secured 161,485,690 146,582,665
Medium-term loans

Unsecured 293,790,190 310,780,827

Secured 307,329,399 287,136,072
Long-term loans

Unsecured 34,629,232 38,195,391

Secured 944,885,625 885,415,448
Overdue loans 6,371,809 7,048,376

1,994,640,751 1,876,207,751

Less: Allowance for possible losses 21,252,865 22,057,059
Less: Adjustment of discount 464,663 489,833

$ 1,972,923,223 $ 1,853,660,859

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, accrual of isteye the above overdue loans had stopped. Tinis, t
unrecognized interest revenue was $139,404 thousartd $207,845 thousand in 2015 and 2014,
respectively, based on the average loan interesfoathe year.

The allowances for possible losses on discountsl@as assessed for impairment as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 were as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Iltems Discounts and | Allowance for Discounts and | Allowance for
Loans Possible Losses| Loans Possible Losses
Assessment of
With objective !ndivi_dual $ 14,360,749 $ 4,476,623 $ 23,245,408 $ 6,980,353
evidence of Impairment
impairment Assessm_ent of
collective 11,167,720 2,418,484 11,152,065 2,527,760
impairment
With no objective |Assessment of
evidence of collective 1,969,112,287 14,357,758 1,841,810,28( 12,548,946
impairment impairment
Total 1,994,640,751 21,252,865 1,876,207,75] 22,057,059
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12.

The changes in allowance for possible losses anenswized below:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Balance, January 1 $ 22,057,059 $ 20,552,283
Provisions for possible losses 2,000,171 5,890,243
Write-offs (3,793,034) (5,426,523)
Recovery of written-off receivables 882,611 846,435
Effects of exchange rate changes and other changes 106,058 194,621
Balance, December 31 $ 21,252,865 $ 22,057,059

The details of bad-debt expenses and provisiologses on guarantees in 2015 and 2014 were aw$ollo

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Provision for possible losses on discounts anddoan $ 2,000,171 $ 5,890,243
Provision for possible losses on receivables 89,310 103,020
Provision (reversal of provision) for possible les®n overdue
receivables 291,108 (20,885)

Provision (reversal of provision) for possible les®n guarantees (222,421) 298,311
$ 2,158,168 $ 6,270,689

The Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) requités minimum provisions for category one sound
credit assets. The Bank made the required provisi®?014. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, The
Bank was in compliance with the FSC-required priovidor credit assets.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET
December 31
2015 2014

Government bonds $ 63,810,846 $ 53,419,695
Bank debentures 16,536,276 10,130,042
Corporate bonds 11,243,453 2,563,964
Listed stocks 3,423,360 3,507,963
Emerging market stocks 551,655 -
Beneficial certificates 319,261 152,837

$ 95,884,851 $ 69,774,501

The Bank evaluated its available-for-sale finan@akets and recognized impairment loss of $3,178
thousand because of the fall in credit rating efltbnd issuer in 2015.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, available-foe-§iabncial assets amounting to $11,559,296 thalisan
and $13,799,489 thousand, respectively, had bddruader repurchase agreements.
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13.

14.

HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
December 31
2015 2014

Government bonds $ 19,742,814 $ 6,998,154
Corporate bonds 16,353,321 5,310,814
Bank debentures 5,992,108 5,290,602
Certificates of deposit 305,784 446,547
Preferred stocks - 2,000,000

42,394,027 $ 20,046,117

The Bank evaluated its held-to-maturity financiabets and recognized an impairment loss of $4,679
thousand and a reversal of impairment loss of $thbusand on some bonds because of the fall ditcre
ratings of the bond issuers in 2015 and 2014, ciisedy.

As of December 31, 2014, held-to-maturity finan@ssets amounting to $957,386 thousand has begn sol
under repurchase agreements.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD
December 31
2015 2014
Investment in subsidiaries $ 1,977,980 $ 1,936,731
Investment in associate 122,023 115,905

$ 2,100,003 $ 2,052,636
The investments accounted for by the equity methratithe share of profit or loss and other comprsien
income of the investments for the years ended Dbeer8l, 2015 and 2014 were based on the financial
statements audited by the auditors for the samesyea

a. Investment in subsidiaries

December 31

2015 2014
Percentage Percentage
of of
Amount Ownership Amount Ownership
United Taiwan Bank S.A $ 1,758,876 90.02 $ 1,778,832 90.02
Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co.,
Ltd. 219,104 100.00 157,899 100.00
$ 1,977,980 $ 1,936,731
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b. Investment in associate

December 31

2015 2014
Percentage Percentage
of of
Amount Ownership Amount Ownership
United Real Estte Management C
Ltd. $ 122,023 30.00 $ 115,905 30.00

Aggregate information of associate that is noturdilially material:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
The Bank’s share of:
Net income $ 13,432 $ 15,018
Other comprehensive income (111) (591)
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 13,321 $ 14,427

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET

December 31

2015 2014

Overdue receivables $ 393,929 $ 259,195
Less: Allowance for possible losses 318,024 247,568
Overdue receivables, net 75,905 11,627
Debt instruments with no active market, net 82,693,056 82,212,689
Due from banks - time deposits 14,030,137 34,968,885
Financial assets carried at cost 4,092,383 3,422,783
Call loans to securities firms 295,920 -

$ 101,187,401 $ 120,615,984

Debt instruments with no active market are summearas follows:

December 31

2015 2014
Corporate bonds $ 66,319,881 $ 68,310,511
Bank debentures 16,044,375 13,585,478
Government bonds - domestic and overseas 328,800 316,700

$ 82,693,056 $ 82,212,689
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Financial assets carried at cost are summarizéallawss:

December 31

2015 2014
Percentage Percentage
of of
Amount Ownership Amount Ownership
Taiwan Asset Management Co., Ltd. $ 2,370,934 17.03 $ 2,370,934 17.03
Taipei Financial Center Corp. 669,600 1.63 - -
Taiwan Power Company 631,153 0.24 631,153 0.24
Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. 135,405 2.89 135,405 2.89
Taiwan Financial Asset Service Co.,
Ltd. 101,125 5.88 101,125 5.88
Others 184,166 184,166
$ 4,092,383 $ 3,422,783

Management believed that the above equity invedsneeld by the Bank, whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured due to the range of reasonabrledhue estimates was so significant; therefoey tivere
measured at cost less impairment at the end oftieg@eriod. Some investees had operating loskas;
the Bank recognized an impairment loss of $23,88bisand on financial assets carried at cost foydlae
ended December 31, 2014.

Due from banks (part of other financial assets) hetd by the Bank were time deposits could not be
withdrawn and had maturity periods of more thae¢hmonths and could not be used before maturity.

. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT, NET

December 31

2015 2014

Carrying amount
Land $ 24,818,969 $ 24,875,173
Buildings 8,346,175 8,672,758
Machinery and equipment 949,975 1,171,733
Transportation equipment 109,598 132,810
Other equipment 114,878 144,814
Leasehold improvements 156,676 152,880
Prepayments for equipment, land and buildings amdtcuction in

progress 4,789,767 4,500,442

$ 39,286,038 $ 39,650,610
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Machinery and Transportation Other Leasehold

Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements Prepayments Total
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2015 $ 24,890,350 $ 14,627,718 $ 5,349,858 $ 649,302 $ 1,189,604 $ 789,786 $ 4,500,442 $ 51,997,060
Additions 51,551 85,496 46,769 17,389 23,495 70,669 493,553 788,922
Disposals - - (521,323) (43,623) (55,390) (52,764) - (673,100)
Reclassification 12,508 49,192 136,909 - - 5,447 (204,056) -
Transferred to investment

properties (120,366) (114,113) - - - - - (234,479)
Transferred to intangible

assets - - - - - - (172) 172)
Effects of exchange rate

changes 103 219 2,869 128 461 (568) - 3212
Balance, December 31,

2015 $ 24,834,146 $ 14,648,512 $ 5,015,082 $ 623,196 $ 1,158,170 $ 812,570 $ 4,789,767 $ 51,881,443
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 25,951,605 $ 14,638,617 $ 5,645,709 $ 637,403 $ 1,230,915 $ 820,693 $ 2,115,533 $ 51,040,475
Additions 31,963 65,044 144,548 17,329 38,160 36,961 2,865,035 3,199,040
Disposals (1,093,378) (234,246) (659,104) (60,957) (82,857) (73,960) - (2,204,502)
Reclassification - 157,961 213,957 54,921 2,320 5,717 (434,876) -
Transferred to intangible

assets - - - - - - (45,246) (45,246)
Transferred to other assets - - - - - - 4) 4)
Effects of exchange rate

changes 160 342 4,748 606 1,066 375 - 7,297
Balance, December 31,

2014 $ 24,890,350 $ 14,627,718 $ 5,349,858 $ 649,302 $ 1,189,604 $ 789,786 $ 4,500,442 $ 51,997,060

Machinery and Transportation Other Leasehold
Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements Total

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance, January 1, 2015 $ 15,177 $ 5,954,960 $ 4,178,125 $ 516,492 $ 1,044,790 $ 636,906 $ 12,346,450
Disposals - - (518,321) (43,400) (54,826) (52,466) (669,013)
Transferred to investment properties - (31,049) - - - - (31,049)
Depreciation expenses - 378,299 403,583 39,353 50,113 69,378 940,726
Effects of exchange rate changes - 127 1,720 1,153 3,215 2,076 8,291
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 15,177 $ 6,302,337 $ 4,065,107 $ 513,598 $ 1,043,292 $ 655,894 $ 12,595,405
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 15,177 $ 5,661,846 $ 4,412,131 $ 533,438 $ 1,073,642 $ 650,983 $ 12,347,217
Disposals - (83,415) (653,436) (60,674) (82,208) (73,218) (952,951)
Depreciation expenses - 376,350 416,919 43,327 52,426 58,908 947,930
Effects of exchange rate changes - 179 2,511 401 930 233 4,254
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 15,177 $ 5,954,960 $ 4,178,125 $ 516,492 $ 1,044,790 $ 636,906 $ 12,346,450

The Bank revalued its properties five times in 19/08, 2007, 2011 and 2012. As December 31, 2015,
the reserve for land revaluation increment taxt(pbdeferred tax liabilities) was $2,596,230 thea.

Properties and equipment were depreciation on tfaéghkt-line method over service lives estimated as
follows:

Buildings
Main buildings 50 years
Equipment installed in buildings 10 to 15 years
Machinery and equipment 3to 10 years
Transportation equipment 5to 10 years
Other equipment 4 to 20 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 years

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank’'s praeays for equipment, land and buildings and
construction in progress pertained to the condtmatf the head office. The license for the camdton

of the head office was obtained in January 201& bililding acceptance check was still in progressfa
the date of the accompanying independent auditegort, and the property will be classified under
buildings after completion and acceptance.

In testing assets for impairment, the Bank defimzdth operating unit or operating segment as a
cash-generating unit (CGU). The recoverable amofiatCGU was determined at its value in use. The
discount rates for the CGUSs’ value in use were &.%hd 9.66% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, NET

December 31

2015 2014
Land $ 1,754,257 $ 1,633,891
Buildings 515,243 449,805

$ 2,269,500 $ 2,083,696

Land Buildings Total

Cost

Balance, January 1, 2015 $ 1,633,891 $ 678,938 $ 2,312,829
Transferred from properties and equipment 120,366 114,113 234,479
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 1,754,257 $ 793,051 $ 2,547,308
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 1,633,891 $ 669,690 $ 2,303,581
Additions - 9,248 9,248
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 1,633,891 $ 678,938 $ 2,312,829
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance, January 1, 2015 $ - $ 229,133 $ 229,133
Depreciation expenses - 17,626 17,626
Transferred from properties and equipment - 31,049 31,049
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ - $ 277,808 $ 277,808
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ - $ 212,638 $ 212,638
Depreciation expenses - 16,495 16,495
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ - $ 229,133 $ 229,133

Investment properties (except for land) were deated through 50 years on a straight-line basis.

As of December 31, 2015, the fair value of investimgroperties was $6,445,664 thousand. The fair
value was determined through calculations usingrheet value method. As of December 31, 2014, the
fair value of investment properties was $5,915,¢&fusand. The fair value was based on the valuatio
made through a discounted cash-flow analysis amdakt of land development analysis.

The revenues generated from the investment pregaate summarized as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Rental income from investment properties $ 167,545 $ 169,201
Direct operating expenses for investment propettiasgenerate
rental income (44.,881) (44.,481)

$ 122,664 $ 124,720
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18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
Computer software

Balance, January 1, 2015

Separate acquisition

Amortization expenses

Transferred from properties and equipment
Effect of exchange rate changes

Balance, December 31, 2015

Balance, January 1, 2014

Separate acquisition

Amortization expenses

Transferred from properties and equipment
Effect of exchange rate changes

Balance, December 31, 2014

December 31

2015 2014

$ 3,170,005 $ 3,170,005
455,258 525,649

$ 3,625,263 $ 3,695,654

Computer

Goodwill Software Total

$ 3,170,005 $ 525,649 $ 3,695,654
- 173,835 173,835
- (244,326) (244,326)
- 172 172
- (72) (72)

$ 3,170,005 $ 455,258 $ 3,625,263

$ 3,170,005 $ 557,472 $ 3,727,477
- 167,831 167,831
- (245,634) (245,634)
- 45,246 45,246
- 734 734

$ 3,170,005 $ 525,649 $ 3,695,654

The computer software with limited useful livesaimortized on a straight-line basis by the usefi@diin 5

years.

Goodwill resulting from merger of the Bank with tRarmers Bank of China was allocated to operating
units or operating segment (cash-generating unitsallocated goodwill). There was no impairmesgd
on goodwill as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

OTHER ASSETS, NET

Prepaid expenses
Refundable deposits
Operating deposits
Collaterals assumed, net
Others
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December 31

2015 2014
$ 627,989 $ 3,341,574
372,993 368,606
48,000 48,000

12,469 12,514

$ 1,061,451 $ 3,770,694



Collaterals assumed are summarized as follows:

December 31

2015 2014
Cost $ - $ 2,375
Less: Accumulated impairment - 2,375
$ - $ -

On the basis of the guidelines of the Financialébupory Commission and the Bank’s evaluation @f th
possibilities of recovery, the Bank recognized 82,1thousand and $144 thousand in reversal of
impairment losses on collaterals assumed in 20d26ath4, respectively.

Of the prepaid expenses as of December 31, 201528t4d, an amount of $323,205 thousand and
$2,950,882 thousand referred to the Bank’s investiimeits overseas branches.

. DUE TO THE CENTRAL BANK AND OTHER BANKS

December 31
2015 2014

Due to banks $ 116,664,501 $ 103,153,067

Call loans from banks 65,807,865 50,275,342
Deposits from Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 14,531,307 21,122,619
Bank overdraft 857,336 1,107,203
Due to the Central Bank 511,968 343,684

$ 198,372,977 $ 176,001,915

. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities sold for $17,452,480 thousand and $8370% thousand under repurchase agreements as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, wouldemleently be purchased for $17,463,265 thousand
and $23,194,806 thousand, respectively.

22.

PAYABLES
December 31
2015 2014

Checks for clearing 9,279,476 $ 14,207,885
Collections payable 5,702,147 6,631,535
Collections of notes and checks for various finahicistitutions in

other cities 5,201,546 5,701,648
Accrued expenses 3,996,353 4,026,627
Accrued interest 3,364,764 3,576,222
Acceptances 3,321,956 2,816,912
Payables on notes and checks collected for others 1,693,053 1,606,723
Tax payable 510,505 483,552

(Continued)
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23.

24,

December 31

2015 2014
Dividends payable $ 178,980 $ 181,542
Payable on securities 155,970 18,270
Factored accounts payable 114,474 87,215
Others 1,783,456 2,352,441
$ 35302,680 $ 41,690,572
(Concluded)
DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES
December 31
2015 2014

Deposits

Checking $ 40,520,013 $ 41,143,803

Demand 486,434,911 423,251,388

Savings - demand 744,683,401 701,731,007

Time 472,653,415 458,916,890

Negotiable certificates of deposit 3,543,000 2,059,800

Savings - time 683,100,935 703,248,764

Treasury 73,374,578 66,581,720
Remittances 318,238 413,543

$ 2,504,628,491 $ 2,397,346,915

BANK DEBENTURES

First cumulative subordinated bonds in 2007: Rsufixing rate
for 90 days’ New Taiwan dollar commercial papersplu7% in
first five years; Reuters’ fixing rate for 90 day¢éw Taiwan
dollar commercial paper plus 1.7% if the Bank fallsedeem the
bank debenture after five years from the issuaate; o maturit

First subordinated bonds in 2008, Type A: Reutisig rate for
90 days’ New Taiwan dollar commercial paper plys3@o;
maturity - May 28, 2015

First subordinated bonds in 2008, Type B: Fixed od 3.0%;
maturity - May 28, 2015

Second subordinated bonds in 2009: Fixed ratel®®2; maturity
- March 28, 2015

First subordinated bonds in 2010: The bank’s ihgginterest rate
for 1-year time deposit plus 0.25%; maturity - J2de2017

Second subordinated bonds in 2010, Type A: Rédteirsy rate
for 90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial paperspiul5%;
maturity - October 25, 2017
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December 31

2015

$ -

8,000,000

3,000,000

2014

$ 13,000,000

1,000,000
4,500,000
4,000,000
8,000,000

3,000,000
(Continued)



December 31

2015 2014

Second subordinated bonds in 2010, Type B: Fizeglaf 1.45%;

maturity - October 25, 2017 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
First subordinated bonds in 2011, Type A: Reutsig rate for

90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial paper pluHo;

maturity - May 25, 2018 7,300,000 7,300,000
First subordinated bonds in 2011, Type B: Fixdd od 1.65%;

maturity - May 25, 2018 2,700,000 2,700,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2011, Type A: Rédteirsy rate

for 90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial papersph.25%;

maturity - July 28, 2018 1,200,000 1,200,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2011, Type B: Fizeglaf 1.70%;

maturity - July 28, 2018 3,410,000 3,410,000
First subordinated bonds in 2012: Fixed rate 65%; maturity -

June 28, 2022 11,650,000 11,650,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2012, Type A: Fiztel of 1.43%;

maturity - December 25, 2019 1,000,000 1,000,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2012, Type B: Fizegaf 1.55%;

maturity - December 25, 2022 7,350,000 7,350,000
First subordinated bonds in 2013, Type A: Reutiaig rate for

90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial paper plus3o;

maturity - March 28, 2020 4,000,000 4,000,000
First subordinated bonds in 2013, Type B: Fixdd od 1.48%;

maturity - March 28, 2020 3,500,000 3,500,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2013, Type A: Fiztel of 1.72%;

maturity - December 25, 2020 900,000 900,000
Second subordinated bonds in 2013, Type B: Réldierg rate

for 90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial paperspiu45%;

maturity - December 25, 2023 4,600,000 4,600,000
First subordinated bonds in 2014, Type A: Fixdd od 1.70%;

maturity - May 26, 2021 1,500,000 1,500,000
First subordinated bonds in 2014, Type B: Fixed od 1.85%;

maturity - May 26, 2024 2,700,000 2,700,000
First subordinated bonds in 2014, Type C: Reufedsig rate for

90 day’s New Taiwan dollar commercial paper plys3o;

maturity - May 26, 2024 5,800,000 5,800,000

$ 69,610,000 $ 92,110,000
(Concluded)

The above Reuters’ fixing rate for 90 days’ Newwa dollar commercial paper refers to the Taipei
Interbank Offered Rate (TAIBOR) for three monthsh@mced by The Bankers Association of the
Republic of China on January 1, 2015.

FSC approved the Bank’s redemption of the Firstudative subordinated bonds - Type C issued in 2008,
which amounted to $4,500,000 thousand on April@,42 The Bank redeemed the bonds on May 28,
2014.

FSC approved the Bank’s redemption of the Secomadutative subordinated bonds - Type B issued in

2007, which amounted to $5,810,000 thousand on 28]y2014. The Bank redeemed the bonds on
September 29, 2014.
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25.

FSC approved the Bank’s redemption of the Firstudative subordinated bonds issued in 2007, which
amounted to $13,000,000 thousand on February 115.20The Bank decided to redeem the bonds on
April 28, 2015.

To expand its long-term USD capital, the Bank aplfor the issuance of unsecured bank debentures
amounting to US$1,000,000 thousand. The applicatias approved by the Financial Supervisory
Commission (FSC) on January 22, 2015. The Banleissmisecured bank debentures with an aggregate
face value of US$400,000 thousand, consisting pé th bonds worth US$300,000 thousand with 0%
interest rate and type B bonds worth US$100,000s#0d with 0% interest rate; the Bank may exelitsse
redemption rights at an agreed price after twos/@ad three years, respectively, from the issuesdatlif

the Bank do not exercise its redemption rightsrdpissue period, all unsecured bank debenturesbwill
refunded on settlement date, March 30, 2045. Toagea exposure to adverse changes in interest rates,
the Bank enters into interest rate swap contraaasuored at fair value through profit or loss and to
eliminate a measurement or recognition inconsigtetite unsecured bank debentures are reclassiied a
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition.heyf were as follows:

December 31,

2015
Unsecured bank debentures bonds issued in 2018, Ayp $ 9,515,762
Unsecured bank debentures bonds issued in 2018&,Byp 3,187,301
$ 12,703,063

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
December 31

2015 2014
Structured products - host contracts $ 5,422,591 $ 7,266,986
Guarantee deposits received 1,526,200 921,205
Appropriation for loans 761,370 873,398

$ 7,710,161 $ 9,061,589

26. PROVISIONS

December 31

2015 2014
Provision for employee benefits
Net defined benefit liability $ 4,658,134 $ 4,106,199
Present value of retired employees’ preferentigrgst deposits
obligation 4,009,952 3,884,422
8,668,086 7,990,621
Provision for losses on guarantees 618,679 840,633

$ 9,286,765 $ 8,831,254
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27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLAN
a. Defined contribution plan

The pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (&) is a defined contribution plan. Based on the

Act, the Bank’s monthly contributions to individupension accounts of employees covered by the
defined contribution plan is at 6% of monthly sedarand wages. The funds are deposited in
individual labor pension accounts at the Burealadfor Insurance.

The Bank recognized expense of $110,355 thousadd$402,851 thousand in the statement of
comprehensive income in 2015 and 2014, respectimedgcordance with the defined contribution plan.

b. Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plan adopted by the Bank iroetance with the Labor Standards Law is operated
by the government. Pension benefits are calculatethe basis of the length of service and average
monthly salaries of the six months before retireimeifhe Bank contributes amounts equal to 15% of
total monthly salaries and wages to a pension fadchinistered by the pension fund monitoring
committee. The pension fund is managed by the &ud Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor (“the
Bureau”); the Bank has no right to influence thesstment policy and strategy. Pension contribgtion
are deposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the commistmame. Before the end of each year, the Bank
assesses the balance in the pension fund. If theust of the balance in the pension fund is
inadequate to pay retirement benefits for employdes conform to retirement requirements in the next
year, the Bank is required to fund the differentemne appropriation that should be made before the
end of March of the next year.

The amounts included in the balance sheets in cesgethe Bank’s defined benefit plans were as

follows:
December 31
2015 2014
Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 11,800,882 $ 11,120,627
Fair value of plan assets (7,142,748) (7,014,428)
Net defined benefit liability $ 4,658,134 $ 4,106,199
Movements in net defined benefit liability werefakows:
Present Value
of the Defined Net Defined
Benefit Fair Value of Benefit

Obligation the Plan Assets Liability (Asset)

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 10,302,614 $ (6,274,167) $ 4,028,447
Service cost
Current service cost 938,749 - 938,749
Net interest expense (income) 183,197 (117,615) 65,582
Recognized in profit or loss 1,121,946 (117,615) 1,004,331
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (29,457) (29,457)
(Continued)
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Present Value
of the Defined Net Defined
Benefit Fair Value of Benefit
Obligation the Plan Assets Liability (Asset)

Actuarial loss - changes in financial

assumptions $ 61,070 $ - $ 61,070
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments 2,577 - 2,577
Recognized in other comprehensive income 63,647 (29,457) 34,190
Contributions from the employer - (960,769) (960,769)
Benefits paid (367,580) 367,580 -
Balance at December 31, 2014 11,120,627 (7,014,428) 4,106,199
Service cost
Current service cost 851,165 - 851,165
Net interest expense (income) 186,467 (120,660) 65,807
Recognized in profit or loss 1,037,632 (120,660) 916,972
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (60,865) (60,865)
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions 499,289 - 499,289
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments 178,503 - 178,503
Recognized in other comprehensive income 677,792 (60,865) 616,927
Contributions from the employer - (981,964) (981,964)
Benefits paid (1,035,169) 1,035,169 -
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11,800,882 $ (7,142,748) $ 4,658,134
(Concluded)

Through the defined benefit plans under the Laltand@ards Law, the Bank is exposed to the following
risks:

1)

2)

3)

Investment risk: The plan assets are investedbmestic/and foreign/equity and debt securities,
bank deposits, etc. The investment is conductethatdiscretion of the Bureau or under the
mandated management. However, in accordance &léliant regulations, the return generated by
plan assets should not be below the interest oate 2-year time deposit with local banks.

Interest risk: A decrease in the governmentdtiaterest rate will increase the present valuthef
defined benefit obligation; however, this will barpally offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

Salary risk: The present value of the defineddifit obligation is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As suchjrmnease in the salary of the plan participant$ wil
increase the present value of the defined benelfgation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value ef diefined benefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuaries. The significant assumptiossdufor the purposes of the actuarial valuationgwe

as follows:
December 31
2015 2014
Discount rate(s) 1.35% 1.75%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 2.00% 2.00%
Expected rate(s) of return on plan asset 1.35% 1.75%
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Had there been a possible reasonable change inoéabk significant actuarial assumptions and all
other assumptions remained constant, the preséum @h the defined benefit obligation would have
increased (decreased) as follows:

December 31,

2015
Discount rate(s)
0.25% increase $ (315,821)
0.25% decrease $ 328,924
Expected rate(s) of salary increase
0.25% increase $ 313,485
0.25% decrease $ (302,769)

The sensitivity analysis presented above mighthaoe been representative of the actual changesin th
present value of the defined benefit obligationt agas unlikely that the changes in assumptionslgvou
have occurred independently of each other becawse sf the assumptions might have correlated.

December 31

2015 2014
The expected contributions to the plan for the yexr $ 2,871,100 $ 605,000
The average duration of the defined benefit ohlogat 11 years 11 years

Employees’ preferential deposit plan

The Bank’'s payment obligations on fixed-amount @rential interest deposits for retired employees
and current employees after retirement are in campé with the Bank’s internal rules. Under the
Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financighétts by Public Banks, the Bank should determine
the excess interest from the preferential intedesposits of employees by applying an actuarial
valuation method when the employees retire.

The amounts included in the balance sheet arisiom fthe Bank’s obligation in the employees’
preferential interest deposits plan were as follows

December 31

2015 2014
Present value of retired employees’ preferentigrast deposits
obligation (part of provisions) $ 4,009,952 $ 3,884,422

The changes in present value of retired employpesferential interest deposits obligation were as
follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Present value of retired employees’ preferentigrgst deposits

obligation, January 1 $ 3,884,422 $ 3,979,147
Interest expense 152,379 151,452
Actuarial losses 760,838 523,661
Benefits paid (787,687) (769,838)
Present value of retired employees’ preferentigrast deposits

obligation, December 31 $ 4,009,952 $ 3,884,422
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Amounts recognized in profit or loss in employeeferential deposit plans for retired employeesn t
statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Interest expense $ 152,379 $ 151,452
Actuarial losses 760,838 523,661
Excessive interest of retired employees’ prefeatimterest
deposits $ 913,217 $ 675,113

Under Rule No. 10110000850 issued by the Finar®igdervisory Commission, effective March 15,
2012, the actuarial assumptions for calculating ekpense for the retired employees’ preferential
interest deposit benefit are as follows:

December 31

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.00% 4.00%
Return on deposit 2.00% 2.00%
Account balance decrease rate per year 1.00% 1.00%
Rate of probability of change in the preferentigbdsit system 50.00% 50.00%

Had there been a possible reasonable change inoéahk significant actuarial assumptions and all
other assumptions remained constant, the preséurg @ the retired employees’ preferential interest
deposit benefit obligation would have increaseai(glesed) as follows:

December 31,

2015

Discount rate(s)

1% increase $ (293,925)

1% decrease $ 339,856
Return on deposit

1% increase $ (748,637)

1% decrease $ 748,637
Account balance decrease rate per year

1% increase $ (310,616)

1% decrease $ 354,540
Rate of probability of change in the preferentigbadsit system

20% increase $ (1,603,981)

20% decrease $ 1,603,981

The sensitivity analysis presented above mighthaoe been representative of the actual changesin th
present value of the retired employees’ prefereiritarest deposit benefit obligation because iswa
unlikely that the change in assumptions would ha@irred independently of each other because some
of the assumptions correlated.
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28. NET INTEREST

Interest revenue
From discounts and loans

From due from banks and call loans to other banks

From investments
Others

Interest expense
From deposits

From subordinated bank debentures
From funds borrowing from the Central Bank and pthenks

From due to the Central Bank and other banks

From securities sold under repurchase agreements

From structure products
Others

29. SERVICE FEE INCOME, NET

Service fee income
From insurance service
From trust business
From loans
From credit cards
From guarantee
From remittance

From cross-bank transactions

From trust affiliated business
From import/export service
Others

Service charge

From cross-bank transactions

From credit cards

From credit cards acquiring
From custody

Others
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 40,426,415 $ 39,978,821
6,266,491 6,938,131
3,470,978 2,724,842
796,842 956,558
50,960,726 50,598,352
(18,741,480)  (19,249,315)
(1,197,324) (1,767,858)
(478,296) (1,152,642)
(423,188) (415,662)
(97,483) (124,796)
(92,149) (225,607)
(24,569) (9,525)

(21,054,489)

(22,945,405)

$ 29,906,237

$ 27,652,947

For the Year Ended December 31

2015

$ 2,193,337
1,379,546
701,065
560,735
444,957
366,280
244,288
179,750
120,170
465,613
6,655,741

(255,417)
(176,804)
(130,617)

(44,500)
(118.,434)
(725,772)

$ 5,929,969

2014

$ 1,574,820
1,352,565
743,274
529,636
392,743
321,565
227,117
151,426
140,026
487,239
5,920,411

(241,290)
(134,467)
(111,726)

(39,424)
(133,680)
(660,587)

$ 5,259,824



30.

31.

GAINS (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILIT IES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Interest
Revenue Gain (Loss) on Gain (Loss) on Dividend
(Expense) Disposal Valuation Income Total
Held-for-trading financial assets $ 242,998 $ 18,847,971 $ (3,786,619) $ 4986 $ 15,309,336
Financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss 8,387 (7,529) 11,840 - 12,698
Held-for-trading financial liabilities - (17,628,958) 2,720,767 - (14,908,191)
Financial liabilities designated as at
fair value through profit or loss (404,765) - 446,769 - 42,004

$ (153,380) $ 1,211.484 $ (607,243) $ 4986 $ 455,847

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Interest Gain (Loss) on Gain (Loss) on Dividend
Revenue Disposal Valuation Income Total
Held-for-trading financial assets $ 263,253 $ 9,315,112 $ 10,766,374 $ 457 $ 20,345,196
Financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss 17,597 - (17,519) - 78
Held-for-trading financial liabilities - (9.608.815) (8,073,373) - (17,682,188)
$ 280,850 $ (293,703) $ 2,675482 $ 457 2,663,086

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATIO N EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Employee benefits

Salaries $ 7,916,850 $ 7,590,901

Incentives 2,552,426 2,898,256

Excessive interest from preferential interest dgpos 1,343,384 1,116,634

Post-employment benefits, termination benefits @dpensation 1,363,171 1,130,736

Overtime 394,656 393,068

Others 1,503,313 1,440,349
Depreciation expenses 958,352 964,425
Amortization expenses 244,414 249,475

Under the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation amenaedrFebruary 25, 2015, the bonus to employees &or th
year ended December 31 2014 was estimated at E28tusand on the basis of past experience. When
the Company Act was amended in May 2015, The Babkard of directors amended its Articles of
Incorporation on March 28, 2016. Under the amendddles, The Bank will distribute employees’
compensation at a fixed ratio 1% to 8% of its ahpuafit (pretax income which exclude compensation
employees). However, the actual appropriationhef honus should be made only from the annual net
income less any accumulated deficit. For the ymaded December 31, 2015, the compensation to
employees was $711,078 thousand, based on the ath@uanpany Act and the amended Articles.

Material differences between such estimated amaumisthe amounts proposed by the board of directors
on or before the annual parent company only firerstatements are authorized for issue are adjusted
the year the compensation were recognized. Ietileea change in the proposed amounts after thgahnn
parent company only financial statements are aizhaifor issue, the differences are recorded dsmage

in accounting estimate.
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32.

The appropriations of bonuses to employees for 28id 2013 have been proposed by the board of
directors on May 25, 2015 and May 26, 2014, re$pelgt were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31
2015 2014

Bonus to employees - cash $ 529,182 $ 449,235
There was no difference between the amounts didhes to employees proposed by the board of di®cto
and the amounts recognized in the parent compalyyfioancial statements for the years ended Decembe
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Information on the bonus to employees proposedheyBank’'s board of directors is available on the
Market Observation Post System website of the Tai8t@ck Exchange (http://emops.tse.com.tw)
INCOME TAX

a. Income tax recognized in profit or loss

Main components of income tax expense were asaislio

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Current tax
Current year $ 2,223,283 $ 705,240
Additional 10% income tax on unappropriated earsing - 34,374
Prior year’s adjustments (408) 418,795

2,222,875 1,158,409
Deferred tax
Current year (270,842) 531,401

Prior year’'s adjustments (174,579)
(270,842) 356,822
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 1,952,033 $ 1,515,231

A reconciliation of accounting profit and currentome tax expenses were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Income before income tax $ 14,081,514 $ 11,643,790
Income tax expense at the 17% statutory rate $ 2,393,857 $ 1,979,444
Nondeductible expenses in determining taxable ircom 77,997 3,153
Tax-exempt income (566,816) (1,067,881)
Additional income tax under the Alternative Minimuirax Act - 166,204
Additional 10% income tax on unappropriated earsing - 34,374
Unrecognized deductible temporary differences (110,691) 27,654
Effect of different tax rate of overseas branchesrating in

other jurisdictions 158,094 128,067
Adjustments for prior year’s tax (408) 244,216
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 1952033 $ 1,515,231
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b. Income tax recognized in other comprehensiverme

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Deferred tax
Recognized in other comprehensive income - itersrtiay be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on the translation of findratetements
of foreign operations $ 30,941 $ 59,158
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale financisleas (7,278) (8,198)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiecgunted
for using the equity method (20,233) (19,918)
Total income tax recognized in other comprehengiveme $ 3,430 $ 31,042

c. Current tax assets and liabilities

December 31

2015 2014
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 134,645 $ 781,706
Tax receivable - consolidated tax return 744,306 743,899
Others 108,392 45,348

$ 987,343 $ 1,570,953

Current tax liabilities

Tax payable $ 14,278 $ 40,030
Tax payable - consolidated tax return 1,251,673 -
Others 60,417 39,880

$ 1,326,368 $ 79,910
d. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilitiereves follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Recognized in

Other Com-
Opening Recognized in  prehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Available-for-sale financial assets $ 1,454 $ - $ 3,764  $ 5,218
Investments accounted for using
equity method 31,034 (16,840) - 14,194
Properties and equipment 10,541 (547) - 9,994
Payable for annual leave 69,975 (3,277) - 66,698
Defined benefit obligation 295,341 78,914 - 374,255
Employee’s preferential interest
deposits obligation 660,352 21,340 - 681,692

(Continued)
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Recognized in

Other Com-
Opening Recognized in  prehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Other liabilities $ 6,113 $ 242 $ - $ 6,355
Unrealized interests expense - 68,810 - 68,810

$ 1074810 $ 148642 $ 3,764 $ 1,227,216

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences
Financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss $ 543486 $ (127,705) $ - $ 415,781
Available-for-sale financial assets 4,343 - (3,514) 829
Intangible assets 364,322 - - 364,322
The reserve for land revaluation

increment tax 2,596,230 - - 2,596,230
Exchanges difference on foreign

operations 60,121 - 10,708 70,829
Others - 5,505 - 5,505

$ 3,568,502 $ (122,200) $ 7,194 $ 3,453,496
(Concluded)
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Recognized in
Other Com-
Opening Recognized in  prehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Available-for-sale financial assets $ 1,229 $ - $ 225 $ 1,454
Investments accounted for using

equity method 45,931 (14,897) - 31,034
Properties and equipment 11,089 (548) - 10,541
Payable for annual leave 64,019 5,956 - 69,975
Defined benefit obligation 295,341 - - 295,341
Employee’s preferential interest

deposits obligation 676,455 (16,103) - 660,352
Other liabilities 547 5,566 - 6,113

$ 1094611 $ (20,026) $ 225 $ 1,074,810

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences
Financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss $ 32,111 $ 511,375 % - $ 543,486
Available-for-sale financial assets 12,316 - (7,973) 4,343
Intangible assets 538,901 (174,579) - 364,322
The reserve for land revaluation

increment tax 2,811,394 (215,164) - 2,596,230
Exchanges difference on foreign

operations 20,881 - 39,240 60,121

$ 3415603 $ 121632 $ 31,267 $ 3,568,502
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e. Unused deductible temporary differences for tvimo deferred tax assets have been recognizea in th
balance sheets

December 31

2015 2014
Deductible temporary differences $ 882,504 $ 1,728,875

f. Imputed tax credits are summarized as follows:

December 31

2015 2014
Balances of stockholders’ imputed tax credit $ 140,889 $ 645,738

For the distribution of the 2014 earnings, the alctueditable ratios were 0.22% for cash dividesais
stock dividends. The Bank estimates the creditedile for distributing the 2015 earnings at 0.71%.

The actual stockholders’ imputation credits shdmdbased on the balance of the imputation credit
account as of the dividend distribution date. A®sult, the estimated creditable ratio for the3201
earnings may differ from the actual creditableaati

g. Under the Income Tax Law, the unappropriategimet! earnings of $19,985 thousand generated by the
Bank until December 31, 1997 were included in theppropriated retained earnings as of December
31, 2015 and 2014.

h. The income tax returns of the Bank through 264d been examined by tax authorities. The Bank
initiated administrative litigations due to the adke income authorized by tax authorities was cbffie
from income tax returns from 2006 to 2011. Pleager to Note 37 for more information.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The numerators and denominators used in calculaangings per share were as follows:

Shares Earnings Per
Net Income (Denominator Share
(Numerator) in Thousands) (Dollars)
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Basic earnings per share $ 12,129,481 7,956,221 $ 1.52
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Basic earnings per share $ 10,128,559 6,960,652 $ 1.46

The number of shares outstanding was retrospegtadjlisted to reflect the effects of the stock diwids
distributed in the year following earnings apprapan.
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34. EQUITY
a. Capital stock
Common stocks

December 31

2015 2014
Numbers of shares authorized (in thousands) 10,000,000 8,000,000
Authorized capital $ 100,000,000 $ 80,000,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousand 8,349,300 7,136,276
Common stocks issued $ 83,493,000 $ 71,362,760

Fully paid common stocks, which have a par valu§ldf, carry one vote per share and carry a right to
dividends.

On April 28, 2014, the Bank’s board of directorsalwed to increase its capital by issuing 200,000
thousand shares of common stocks at NT$21.50 ee sh TCFHC subscribed for all the new shares
and this capital increase transaction was apprbydeSC and MOEA.

On November 27, 2014, the Bank’s board of directesslved to increase its capital by issuing 93,024
thousand shares of common stocks at NT$21.5 pee.shd CFHC subscribed for all the new shares
and this capital increase transaction was apprbyee5C and MOEA.

On February 25, 2015, the Bank’s stockholders vesblko increase its capital by issuing 993,024
thousand shares of common stocks at NT$21.5 pee.shd CFHC subscribed for all the new shares
and enhance the authorized capital to $100,000000sand. The capital increase transaction was
approved by FSC and MOEA.

On August 24, 2015, the Bank’s board of directesolved to increase its capital by issuing 220,000
thousand shares of common stocks at NT$21.8 pee.shd CFHC subscribed for all the new shares
and this capital increase transaction was apprbydeSC and MOEA.

b. Capital surplus

On December 22, 2014, TCFHC'’s board of directosslked to increase its capital and reserve 15% of
the new shares for the subscription by the empkydelTCFHC and its subsidiaries. In 2015, the
Bank recognized $308,076 thousand arising fromsti@e based payment under salary expenses and
under capital surplus, based on the fair valuehef options on the grant date. The Bank also
recognized $624 thousand to capital surplus undbsidiaries’ share based payment based on the
shareholding proportion.

Under related regulations, capital surplus may $mruo offset a deficit. Capital surplus arisingni

the issuance of shares in excess of par valueuflimg additional paid-in capital from the issuante
common shares and capital surplus from mergerdraadury stock transactions) and donations may be
distributed as cash dividends or transferred torsomstock on the basis of the percentage of shares
held by the stockholders. Any capital surplusdfarred to common stock should be within a certain
percentage prescribed by law.

Under related regulations, the capital surplus fexqaity investments under the equity method cannot
be distributed for any purpose.
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C.

Special reserve

Under FSC guidelines, the Bank reclassified to igpeeserve $165,255 thousand, the sum of trading
loss reserve and reserve for loss on branch ofhpeec commitments, which were in place until

December 31, 2010. The reclassified special resirwnavailable to be used unless: (1) offset a
deficit or (2) when the special reserve reaches 50%e Bank’s paid-in capital, 50% of the excess

may be used to issue new capital or (3) the FSCammsoved that excess may be reversed to
unappropriated earnings when special reserve leeedgd the Bank’s paid-in capital.

As of December 31, 2015, the special reserve frquaite investments under the equity method was
$14,944 thousand.

On the first-time adoption of IFRSs, the Bank sdoappropriate to a special reserve of an amount tha
was the same as these of unrealized revaluatiaenment and cumulative translation differences
(gains) transferred to retained earnings as atresuhe Bank’s use of exemptions under IFRS 1.
However, at the date of transitions to IFRSs, & ificrease in retained earnings that resulted thm
IFRSs adjustments is not enough for this apprapnatonly the increase in retained earnings that
resulted from all IFRSs adjustments will be appiaipd to special reserve. The special reserve
appropriated as above may be reversed in propottidhe usage, disposal or reclassification of the
related assets and thereafter distributed. Theapeserve appropriated on the first-time adoptb
IFRSs may be used to offset deficits in subseqyesats. No appropriation of earnings shall be made
until any shortage of the aforementioned speciedmee is appropriated in subsequent years if thik Ba
has earnings and the original need to appropriapeaial reserve is not eliminated.

The increase in retained earnings that resultexh fal IFRSs adjustments was not enough for this
appropriation; therefore, the Bank appropriatethéospecial reserve an amount of $1,132,019 thdusan
on January 1, 2013, the increase in retained egsninat resulted from all IFRSs adjustments on
transitions to IFRSs.

Information regarding the above special reservegpiated or reversed on elimination of the origina
need to appropriate a special reserve was as fallow

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Balance on January 1 $ 1,037,384 $ 1,128,826
Reversed on elimination of the original need torappate a
special reserve:
Disposal of properties and equipment - (91,442)
Balance on December 31 $ 1,037,384 $ 1,037,384

Appropriation of earnings

From the annual net income less any deficit shbeléppropriated 30% as legal reserve and a certain
amount, depending on regulations and operatingshyeedspecial reserve. The remaining net income
and unappropriated earnings of prior years, whitdukl be approved by stockholders, are as follows:

1) Dividends.
2) Bonus to employees ranging from 1% to 8%, ddtexchannually by the board of directors.
3) Other appropriations, in compliance with relévagulations.

Unless it is otherwise restricted by related retiofes, the Bank’s policy indicates that cash dividie
must be 50% or above of the total dividends andibalistributed.
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If the legal reserve reaches the amount of paicapital or the Bank is sound in both its financd an
business operations and have set aside a legaledeecompliance with the Company Law, the legal
reserve is not subject to the limitation of 30%s&der the Banking Law and related regulations.

In accordance with the amendments to the CompanynAday 2015, the recipients of dividends and
bonuses are limited to shareholders and do naidecemployees. The Bank will make consequential
amendments to the Bank’s Articles of Incorporatiofor information about the accrual basis of the
employees compensation or employee bonus for thesysded December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
actual appropriations for the years ended Dece®ibe2014 and 2013, please refer to Note 31.

Under related regulations, a special reserve isogpjated from the balance of the retained earnings
generated at an amount from the net income andpuogipated earnings that is equal to the debit
balance of accounts in the stockholders’ equityieedsuch as exchange differences in translation o
financial statements of foreign operations and aliwed gains or losses on available-for-sale fir@nc
assets). The special reserve should be apprapriedm the prior years’ unappropriated earnings to
the extent of the debit balance accumulated froior grears and such special reserve should not be
appropriated. The balance of the special ressradjusted to reflect any changes in the debiticala

of the related accounts.

Under the Company Law, legal reserve should beompjated until the reserve equals the Bank’s
paid-in capital. This reserve should only be usedffset a deficit. When the reserve exceeds 25%
of the Bank’s paid-in capital, the excess may kalus issue new shares or distribute cash dividends

Under the Income Tax Law, except for non-ROC rediddareholders, all shareholders receiving the
dividends are allowed a tax credit equal to theapprtionate share of the income tax paid by thekBa
Effective from January 1, 2015, ROC resident shaldslts receiving the dividends are allowed half of
original tax credit equal to their proportionateushof the income tax paid by the Bank accordinip¢o
revised Income Tax Law.

The appropriations from the earnings of 2014 aritB28ere approved in the stockholders’ meetings on
May 25, 2015 and May 26, 2014, respectively. Tperapriations and dividends per share were as
follows:

Dividends Per Share

Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)
2014 2013 2014 2013
Legal reserve $ 3,038,246 $ 2,406,618
Cash dividends 7,089,000 5,600,000 $0.872031 $0.818324

The appropriation from the earnings of 2015 wastingifor the approval of the Bank's board of
directors.

Information on the appropriation of earnings oridebffsetting can be accessed through the welo$ite
the Taiwan Stock Exchange (http://emops.tse.com.tw)
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35. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Taiwan Cooperative Financial Holding Co., Ltd. lie tultimate parent of the Bank, and the Ministry of
Finance is the major government stockholder. BasedIAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” the

Company’s transactions with government-relatedigmrare exempt from disclosure requirements. In
addition to those mentioned in other notes, thatedtparty transactions are summarized as follows:

a. Related parties

Related Party Relationship with the Bank

Taiwan Cooperative Financial Holding Company, Ltd. Parent company
(TCFHC)

Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. (CIB)
United Taiwan Bank S.A

Co-operative Assets Management Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Cooperative Bills Finance Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Cooperative Securities Co., Ltd.

BNP Paribas Cardif TCB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Sister company
Sister company
Sister company
Sister company

(BPCTLI)
Taiwan Cooperative Securities Investment Trust Col., Sister company
(former name: BNP Paribas TCB Asset Management
Co., Ltd., TCSIT)
Taiwan Cooperative Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (TCVC) Sister company
Cooperative | Asset Management Co., Ltd. Sister company (before December 1, 2014)
United Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. Associated enterprise
TCB Fund of Emerging Markets Bond Fund (former  Fund managed by Taiwan Cooperative
name: BNP Paribas TCB Elite Fund of Emerging Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.
Markets Bond Fund)
TCB Global High Yield Bond Fund (former name: BNPund managed by Taiwan Cooperative
Paribas TCB Elite Global High Yield Bond Fund) Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.
Giga Solution Tech. Co., Ltd. Giga’s independent director is also the
parent company’s independent director.
Main management of the parent company
and other related parties

Others

b. Significant transactions between the Bank atadad parties:
1) Due from banks (part of cash and cash equitglen

December 31

2015 2014
Subsidiaries $ 582,372 $ 33,801
Main management 1 965
$ 582373 3 34,766
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2) Call loans to banks
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Interest Interest Rate
Highest Balance Ending Balance Revenue (%)
For the year ended
December 31, 2015
Subsidiaries $ 101,116,861 $ 6,435789 $ 40,407 0.020-3.320
Sister companies 4,400,000 3,500,000 14,560 0.350-0.650
Main management 7,880,660 - 783 0.010-0.400
Others 9,000,000 1,000,000 21,276 0.280-0.600
$ 122,397,521 $ 10,935,789 $ 77,026
For the year ended
December 31, 2014
Subsidiaries $ 8,306,725 $ 8,306,725 $ 81,559 0.230-3.750
Sister companies 5,000,000 1,800,000 14,042 0.390-0.650
Main management 10,356,090 - 2,729 0.130-1.250
Others 7,000,000 2,600,000 10,785 0.390-0.600
$ 30,662,815 $ 12,706,725 $ 109,115
3) Due to banks
For the Year Ended December 31
2015 2014
Ending Interest Ending Interest
Balance Expense Balance Expense
Subsidiaries $ 2,753  $ 1 % 6,163 $ 31
Main management 165,233 2,620 597,339 9,155
Others 24,747,119 304,369 24,001,686 332,769
$ 24915,105 $ 306,990 $ 24,605,188 $ 341,955
4) Call loans from banks
Highest Ending Interest Interest Rate
Balance Balance Expense (%)
For the year ended
December 31, 2015
Main management $ 17,905,250 $ 657,764 $ 7,845 0.100-3.000
Others 3,000,000 - 32 0.388
$ 20,905,250 $ 657,764 $ 7,877
For the year ended
December 31, 2014
Main management $ 4592,150 $ 475,050 $ 6,433 0.180-1.600



5) Loans

Highest Ending Interest
Balance Balance Revenue
For the year ended
December 31, 2015
Sister companies $ 12,697 $ - % 6
Main management 192,304 126,978 2,030
Others 99,024 78,959 1,457
$ 304,025 $ 205,937 $ 3,493
For the year ended
December 31, 2014
Sister companies $ 85,137 $ - % 6
Main management 208,026 130,808 2,041
Others 116,282 76,119 1,476
$ 409,445 $ 206,927 $ 3,523

Interest Rate

(%)

2.475-2.545
1.470-2.708
1.500-2.700

2.545
1.525-2.708
1.417-2.810

Under the Banking Law, except for customer loans government loans, credits extended by the
Bank to any related party should be 100% secured,the terms of credits extended to related

parties should be similar to those for third partie

6) Securities purchased under resell agreements

Ending Interest
Balance Revenue
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Sister companies $ 199,597 $ 4,280
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Sister companies $ 898,819 $ 3,906
7) Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Ending Interest
Balance Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Parent company $ - $ 48
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Interest
Rate (%)

0.440-0.810

0.600-0.700

Interest
Rate (%)

0.400



8) Deposits

Ending Interest Interest Rate
Balance Expense (%)
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Parent company $ 34739 % 1,139 0-0.170
Subsidiaries 242,200 568 0.170-1.395
Sister companies 4,405,864 6,261 0-1.360
Associates 189,203 866 0-1.130
Main management 534,878 10,910 0-13.000
Others 10,923,024 34,821 0-13.000

$ 16,329,908 $ 54,565

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Parent company $ 23,659 $ 152 0-0.170
Subsidiaries 187,298 548 0.170-1.395
Sister companies 1,199,420 8,376 0-1.360
Associates 181,242 806 0-1.130
Main management 530,003 11,647 0-13.000
Others 14,518,535 41,028 0-13.000

$ 16,640,157 $ 62,557

December 31

2015 2014
9) Accrued income (part of receivables)
Subsidiaries $ 198,226 $ 121,494
Sister companies 2,205 3,056
Main management - 1
Others 300 90

$ 200,731 $ 124,641

10) Accrued interest (part of receivables)

Subsidiaries $ 4,490 $ 10,691
Sister companies 316 315
Others 85 57

$ 4891 $ 11,063

11) Tax receivable - consolidated tax return (padurrent tax
assets)

Parent company $ 744,306 $ 743,899
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12) Accrued interest (part of payables)
Subsidiaries

Sister companies
Main management

13) Accrued expense (part of payables)
Sister companies

14) Tax payable - consolidated tax return (padwfent tax
liabilities)

Parent company

15) Guarantee deposits received (part of othen&iadh
liabilities)
Parent company

Subsidiaries
Sister companies

16) Unearned rental income (part of other liala)i

Subsidiaries

17) Service fee income (part of service fee incamas)
Subsidiaries
Sister companies
Associates

Main management
Others

18) Service charge (part of service fee income, net

Main management

-63 -

December 31

2015 2014

$ 5 $ 15

14 81

2,113 52

$ 2132 $ = 148

$ 3,398 $ -

$ 1,251,673 $ -

$ 1,520 $ 1,440

899 522

13,777 13,360

$ 16,196 $ 15,322

$ 0 - $ 110
For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

$ 2,193,549 $ 1,578,556

58,759 59,278

65 -

350 281

626 360

$ 2,253,349 $ 1,638,475

$ 0 22 $ 20



19) Rental income (part of other noninterest gat)
Parent company
Subsidiaries

Sister companies
Others

20) Rental expense (part of general and administiat
Sister companies

21) Information service fee (part of general anchiadstration)
Sister companies

22) Other income (part of other noninterest ga@t) n
Parent company
Sister companies

Associates
Others

23) Donation (part of other noninterest gain, net)

Main management

For the Year Ended December 31

2015
$ 6,080
3,595
53,560
12,708
$ 75,943
$ 7,086
$ 38,554
$ 1,340
306
24
2,950
$ 4,620
$ 2,000

2014
$ 5,787
2,090
51,733
12,708
$ 72,318
$ 20,460
$ 0 -
$ 1,340
306
104
2,985
$ 4,735
$ 2,000

Terms of other transactions with related partiesevegmilar to those for third parties, except foe t
more favorable interest rate for managers’ saviwiihin a prescribed limit. The Bank has
operating lease contracts with related partiesclwisbver certain office spaces within the Bank’s
building. The monthly rentals were based on rerftl buildings near the Bank.

24) Purchases and sales of securities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Sales Under Purchases
Repurchase Under Resell
Related Party Purchases Sales Agreements Agreements
Parent company $ -8 - $ 1093873 3 -
Sister companies - - - 17,117,728
$ - $ - $ 1,093,873 17,117,728
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Related Party

Sister companies

25) Derivatives

Related Party

Sister company -
BPCTLI

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Sales Under Purchases
Repurchase Under Resell
Purchases Sales Agreements Agreements
$ 2153222 $ - $ - $ 14,340,829
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
Type of Contract Nominal Valuation Amounts on the Balance Sheet
Derivatives Period Amounts Gain (Loss) Account Amounts
Currency swap 2015.12.22- US$ 4935 $ 146 Financial assets at fair $ 146
2016.03.22 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.22- US$10,033 296 Financial assets at fair 296
2016.03.22 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.22- US$13,000 383 Financial assets at fair 383
2016.03.22 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.05.06- US$ 3,187 6,744 Financial assets at fair 6,744
2016.05.06 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.11.09- US$ 6,981 3,672 Financial assets at fair 3,672
2016.01.11 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.10.13- US$ 9,989 3,201 Financial assets at fair 3,201
2016.01.13 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.31- US$11,219 842 Financial assets at fair 842
2016.01.29 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.11.09- US$ 3,499 1,841 Financial assets at fair 1,841
2016.01.11 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.31- US$10,897 817 Financial assets at fair 817
2016.01.29 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.11.09- US$ 1,699 894 Financial assets at fair 894
2016.01.11 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.10.15- US$11,386 4,890 Financial assets at fair 4,890
2016.01.15 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.31- US$ 6,722 504 Financial assets at fair 504
2016.01.29 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.31- US$ 3,000 225 Financial assets at fair 225
2016.01.29 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.31- US$ 5,000 375 Financial assets at fair 375
2016.01.29 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.04.07- US$10,259 16,125 Financial assets at fair 16,125
2016.04.07 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.04.15- US$ 3,129 5,194 Financial assets at fair 5,194
2016.04.15 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.04.15- US$ 3,129 5,194 Financial assets at fair 5,194
2016.04.15 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.04.15- US$ 4,850 8,051 Financial assets at fair 8,051
2016.04.15 value through profit
or loss
(Continued)
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Related Party

Other - TCB Fund of
Emerging Markets
Bond Fund

Other - TCB Global
High Yield Bond
Fund

Other - Giga Solution
Tech. Co., Ltd.

Related Party

Sister company -
BPCTLI

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Type of Contract Nominal Valuation Amounts on the Balance Sheet
Derivatives Period Amounts Gain (Loss) Account Amounts
Currency swap 2015.05.08- US$20,579 $ 43,673 Financial assets at fair $ 43,673

2016.05.09 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.05.13- US$10,443 22,640 Financial assets at fair 22,640
2016.05.13 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.10.13- US$ 1,920 615 Financial assets at fair 615
2016.01.13 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.09.15- US$10,488 5,124 Financial assets at fair 5,124
2016.03.15 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.11.27- US$ 2,000 742  Financial assets at fair 742
2016.01.27 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.16- US$ 7,300 - Financial assets at fair -
2016.01.19 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.16- US$ 2,200 - Financial assets at fair -
2016.01.19 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.16- uUss 730 - Financial assets at fair -
2016.01.19 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.16- US$ 3,000 - Financial assets at fair -
2016.01.19 value through profit
or loss
Currency swap 2015.12.16- US$ 520 (271) Financial liabilities at (271)
2016.01.19 fair value through
profit or loss
Forward 2015.10.22- uUss$ 500 240 Financial assets at fair 240
2016.01.26 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.10.30- uUs$ 500 169 Financial assets at fair 169
2016.02.03 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.11.09- uUs$ 500 118 Financial assets at fair 118
2016.02.16 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.11.16- uUss 200 15 Financial assets at fair 15
2016.02.18 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.11.27- uUss$ 500 147 Financial assets at fair 147
2016.02.01 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.12.02- Us$ 300 55 Financial assets at fair 55
2016.03.07 value through profit
or loss
Forward 2015.12.31- uUss$ 500 22 Financial assets at fair 22
2016.03.04 value through profit
or loss
(Concluded)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Type of Contract Nominal Valuation Amounts on the Balance Sheet
Derivatives Period Amounts Gain (Loss) Account Amounts
Cross-currency 2010.11.17- US$ 5000 $ 10,184 Financial assets at fair $ 9,133
swap 2015.09.08 value through profit
or loss
Cross-currency 2010.11.24- US$ 5,000 9,033 Financial assets at fair 8,414
swap 2015.01.20 value through profit
or loss
Cross-currency 2010.12.10- US$ 5,000 8,999 Financial assets at fair 10,445
swap 2015.09.28 value through profit
or loss
(Continued)
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Related Party

Other - TCB Fund of
Emerging Markets
Bond Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Type of

Derivatives

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Currency swap

Contract
Period

2014.12.22-
2015.06.22

2014.12.22-
2015.09.22

2014.12.22-
2015.06.22

2014.12.22-
2015.12.22

2014.12.22-
2015.12.22

2014.11.06-
2015.02.06-

2014.12.08-
2015.04.08

2014.12.10-
2015.09.10

2014.11.28-
2015.05.29

2014.12.08-
2015.09.08

2014.12.26-
2015.01.26

2014.10.02-
2015.01.05

2014.12.11-
2015.04.13

2014.12.15-
2015.09.15

2014.12.29-
2015.01.29

2014.12.31-
2015.01.30

2014.12.31-
2015.01.30

2014.12.31-
2015.03.31

2014.12.31-
2015.03.31

2014.12.31-
2015.04.30

2014.11.20-
2015.01.20
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Nominal

Amounts

US$10,036

US$ 4,935

US$10,029

US$10,033

US$13,000

US$ 3,187

US$ 6,981

US$ 9,989

US$11,219

US$ 3,499

US$10,897

US$ 1,699

US$ 5,147

US$11,386

US$ 6,722

US$ 5,000

US$10,000

US$ 3,000

US$ 5,000

US$ 5,000

US$ 4,000

Valuation
Gain (Loss)

$

2,799

1,390

2,797

2,916

3,779

3,802

3,584

4,561

8,435

1,818

(2,454)

2,020

2,051

4,919

(1,223)

(466)

(933)

(283)

(471)

(460)

3,977

Amounts on the Balance Sheet

Account

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Amounts

$

2,799

1,390

2,797

2,916

3,779

3,802

3,584

4,561

8,435

1,818

(2,454)

2,020

2,051

4,919

(1,223)

(466)

(933)

(283)

(471)

(460)

3,977

(Concluded)



The realized profit on the currency swaps and ecassency swaps transactions with related parties
were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31
2015 2014

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value tlglo profit or

loss
Sister companies $ 181,029 $ 210,875

Others 41,353 4,587
$ 222,382 $ 215,462

26) Loans

December 31, 2015

Differences in

Terms of
Highest Transaction
Balance in the Compared with
Year Ended Loan Classification Those for
Account Volume December 31, Ending Nonperforming Unrelated
Type or Name 2015 (Note) Balance Normal Loans Loans Collaterals Parties
Consumer loans 48 $ 151,434 $ 95,322 $ 95,322 $ Land and buildings None
Self-used housing mortgage 28 139,894 110,615 110,615 Land and buildings None
loans
Other Taiwan 12,697 - - - Bonds and time None
deposits

Cooperative
Securities Co.,
Ltd.

December 31, 2014

Differences in

Terms of
Highest Transaction
Balance in the Compared with
Year Ended Loan Classification Those for
Account Volume December 31, Ending Nonperforming Unrelated
Type or Name 2014 (Note) Balance Normal Loans Loans Collaterals Parties
Consumer loans 43 $ 118,407 $ 85,481 $ 85,481 $ - Land and buildings None
Self-used housing mortgage 40 205,901 121,446 121,446 - Land and buildings None
loans
Other Taiwan 85,137 - - - Bonds and time None
Cooperative deposits
Securities Co.,
Ltd.

Note: The highest balance is the largest sumdryéar of all daily accounts for each type.

27) On December 30, 2013, the Bank’s board of threcapproved a property sale and leaseback
transaction with Co-operative Assets Management Caml. The selling price was $962,000
thousand and the net gain on this disposal was,$88Qhousand after the deduction of a land
revaluation increment tax of $17,792 thousand. @h& on disposal should be deferred and
amortized over the lease period. The Bank recegni®154,779 and $425,644 thousand as
realized gain (part of gain/losses on disposalroperty and equipment, net) for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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c. Salaries, bonuses and remunerations to maingearent

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits $ 122,406 $ 118,066
Post-employment benefits 12,959 12,894
Interest arising from the employees’ preferentidéin excess of
normal rates 7,845 7,012

$ 143,210 $ 137,972

36. PLEDGED ASSETS

a. In addition to those mentioned in other notles,face values of the pledged bonds and certificatte
deposit are summarized as follows:

December 31

2015 2014

Collaterals for call loans of foreign currency $ 40,000,000 $ 40,000,000
Collaterals for day-term overdraft 30,000,000 30,000,000
Collaterals for overdraft of domestic U.S. dollattement 11,000,000 11,000,000
Collaterals for overdraft of domestic RMB settlemen 3,994,400 7,648,500
Guarantee deposits for provisional collateral seiZar loan

defaults and others 675,200 769,100
Collaterals for overdraft of domestic JPY settletnen 500,000 -
Overseas branches’ capital adequate reserve 305,784 446,547
Guarantee deposits for the trust business compensaserve 180,000 160,000
Guarantee deposits for bills finance business 50,000 50,000
Guarantee deposits for securities operation 50,000 50,000
Collaterals for overseas branch U.S. dollar setlsm 36,168 28,503
Collaterals for handling the government treasufstiief - 90,200,000
Others 1,400 1,400

$ 86,792,952 $ 180,354,050

To comply with the Central Bank of the RepublicGifina’s (CBC) clearing system for real-time gross
settlement (RTGS), the Bank provided certificategl@posit as collateral for day-term overdraft {par
of due from the Central Bank and call loans to othenks). The pledged amount may be adjusted
anytime, and the unused overdraft amount at theoéadday can also be treated as the Bank'’s liyuidi

reserve.

b. To expand their capital sourcing and enhande lifaidity position, the Bank’s Seattle Branchdainos
Angeles Branch obtained access privileges at tseddint Window of the Federal Reserve Bank of San
Francisco. For this access, the two branches etetlge following assets:

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Outstanding Balance Collateral

Date Loan Bond Total Value
December 31, 2015 $ 316,666 $ 22,000 $ 338,666 $ 227,840
December 31, 2014 $ 278,096 $ 62,000 $ 340,096 $ 247,340
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37. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGN IZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those mentioned in other notes, significant contingencies and commitments as of
December 31, 2015 were as follows:

a. Lease agreements on premises occupied by thk'sBaranches are operating lease. Rentals are
calculated on the basis of the leased areas anghgedle monthly, quarterly or semiannually. As of
December 31, 2015, refundable deposits on theseddataled $163,796 thousand (part of refundable
deposits). Minimum future annual rentals are #ev:

December 31

2015 2014
Within one year $ 592,570 $ 633,697
One to five years 1,016,771 1,109,710
Over five years 36,656 14,027

$ 1,645,997 $ 1,757,434
The lease payments recognized as expenses afasfo

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Minimum lease payments $ 656,073 $ 662,980
Contingent rentals 1,199 1,095

$ 657,272 $ 664,075

b. Lease agreements on investment properties obwpelde Bank and rent to others are operating lease.
Rentals are calculated on the basis of the leasedsaand are receivable monthly, quarterly or
semiannually. The lessees have no preemptivesrightbuy properties at the end of the lease
agreements. As of December 31, 2015, refundalesits on these leases totaled $54,307 thousand
(part of guarantee deposits received). Minimumreiannual rentals are as follows:

December 31

2015 2014
Within one year $ 181,160 $ 148,175
One to five years 398,957 194,723

$ 580,117 $ 342,898

c. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank's outstandimgor construction and procurement contracts
amounted to $5,687,178 thousand, of which $1,083{86usand was still unpaid.

d. According to the joint venture contract signathBNP Paribas Assurance (BNPPA), the Bank signed
the tri-party agreement with BNP Paribas Cardif TCBe Insurance Co., Ltd. (BPCTLI) and
Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. (CIB) orrilAp3, 2010, which identified BPCTLI as the sole
supplier of life insurance products for the Bankl &1B, also applying the Bank’s marketing channels
to sell life insurance products exclusively.
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e. For the Bank’s income tax returns (ITRs) frond@@ 2011, the Taipei National Tax Administration
(TNTA) claimed that the appraisal of goodwill wast measonable and that there were no unrecognized
losses on the sale of nonperforming loans in thekBarecords on the date of the merger with the
Farmers Bank of China (FBC). Thus, TNTA denied ¢x@enses for the goodwill amortization of
$3,170,005 thousand and the deferred loss amaotizaif $3,105,522 thousand on the sale of
nonperforming loans. The Bank disagreed with tiNTA’s decision and initiated administrative
litigations. On December 30, 2014, TNTA allowed fhartial amortization of goodwill expenses and
of the losses on sales of nonperforming loans entélx returns of 2006 to 2011 after negotiatindhwit
the Bank. The Bank recognized related income tpemrses of $228,990 thousand in 2014. On
February 25 and April 9, 2015, TNTA reassessedtinak’'s 2006 to 2010 ITRs application. Because
the Bank did not file an administrative appeal, timal court decision has been determined. Thus,
ITRs have been returned (part of tax refund redtdévaof current tax assets). Besides the
administrative litigation of the Bank’s 2011 ITRgpdication is still in process.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair values of financial instruments that aremeasured at fair value
Except for the financial assets and liabilitiesvghan the following table, management considers tha
either the carrying amounts of financial assets @inancial liabilities recognized in the financial
statements approximate their fair values or the ¥alues of the financial instruments cannot be
reasonably measured.

December 31

2015 2014
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial
assets $ 42,394,027 $ 43,220,050 $ 20,046,117 $ 20,085,507
Debt instruments with no
active market 82,693,056 83,558,047 82,212,689 82,183,499
Financial liabilities
Bank debentures 69,610,000 70,258,774 92,110,000 92,416,474

Fair value hierarchy as at December 31, 2015

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial

assets $ 43,220,050 $ 6,024,163 $ 37,195,887 $ -
Debt investments with no acti

market 83,558,047 - 83,558,047 -
Financial liabilities
Bank debentures 70,258,774 - 70,258,774 -
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b. The valuation techniques and assumptions th& Bses for determining fair values are as follows:

The fair values of financial instruments tradedamtive markets are based on quoted market prices.
However, in many instances where there are no duogrket prices for the Bank’s various financial
instruments, fair values are based on estimatex wgher financial data and appropriate valuation
methodologies. Fair values of forward contractgrency swap contracts, foreign-currency margin
contracts, cross-currency swap contracts and sitewde swap contracts are calculated using the
discounted cash flow method, unless the fair vahresprovided by counter-parties. Fair values of
option contracts are based on estimates usingldek Bcholes pricing model.

The Bank estimates the fair value of each forwamgtract on the basis of the swap points quoted by
Reuters on each settlement date. Fair valuestefest rate swap contracts and cross-currency swap
contracts are calculated using the Bloomberg infion system, unless the fair values are provided b
counterparties. The calculation of the fair vatfieach option contract is based on the mid-ptice (
average of bid and ask prices) quoted by Reuters.

For debt instruments with no active market, if ¢here theoretical prices from GreTai Securities
Market (GTSM, an over-the-counter securities exgegquon the balance sheet date, they are used as the
basis for evaluating the fair value of debt instemts with no active market. Otherwise, the latest
trade prices and quoted prices by major marketsuseel. The fair values of bank debentures are
recorded as follows: (a) debentures with no mbtutates - at book values; (b) debentures with
floating interest rates - at theoretical pricestgddoy the GTSM; and (c) debentures with fixedriege

rates - at estimates reached using the discourasidl flow method. The discount rates used were
between 0.7361% and 1.0960%, between 0.8567% &3@3% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, and were comparable with interessrédr loans with similar terms and characteristics

c. The fair value hierarchies of the Bank’s finahénstruments as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 wer
as follows:

Financial Instrument December 31, 2015
Measured at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non-derivative financial
instruments

Assets

Financial assets at FVTPL
Held-for-trading financial

assets
Stocks $ 82,461 $ 82,461 $ - 3 -
Others 10,497,699 - 10,497,699 -
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Stocks 3,975,015 3,423,360 551,655 -
Debt instruments 91,590,575 19,974,353 71,616,222 -
Others 319,261 319,261 - -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (12,703,063) - (12,703,063) -

(Continued)
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Financial Instrument

December 31, 2015

Measured at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL $ 4,355916 $ 4029 $ 4,351,887 $ -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (2,003,859) - (2,003,859) -
(Concluded)
Financial Instrument December 31, 2014
Measured at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Held-for-trading financial
assets
Stocks $ 89,606 $ 89,606 - -
Debt instruments 250,519 250,519 - -
Others 33,541,140 - 33,541,140 -
Financial assets designated
as at FVTPL 417,727 417,727 - -
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Stocks 3,507,963 3,507,963 - -
Debt instruments 66,113,701 14,256,114 51,857,587 -
Others 152,837 152,837 - -
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL 9,370,331 5,092 9,365,239 -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (6,082,468) - (6,082,468) -

Information on financial assets designated &siavalue through profit or loss that should begimally

measured at amortized cost is as follows:

December 31

Carrying amounts of debt instruments designateat fer value

through profit or loss
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Change in Fair

Values
Resulting from
Credit Risk
Variations
Change in amount in the year
2015 $ 6,311
2014 $ (5,322)
Accumulated amount of change
As of December 31, 2015 $ -
As of December 31, 2014 $ (6,311)

The change in fair value of debt instruments dextigph as at fair value through profit or loss resglt
from credit risk variation is the difference betweabe total change in fair value and the chandgaiimn
value due to market risk variations on these deditiments. The change in fair value resultingnfro
market risk variations is calculated using the hemark yield rate plus a fixed credit spread. Tdie f
value of debt instruments is the present valueutfré cash flows discounted by the benchmark yield
rate quoted in the market as of the balance statetpius the credit spread estimated using theeisite
rates for the debt issuers’ financial assets withilar maturities.

As of the balance sheet date, the debt instruntrsignated as at fair value through profit or lagge
no concentration of credit risk. Their carrying@amts are the amount of the maximum exposure to
credit risks of these debt instruments.

Information on financial liabilities designatasl at fair value through profit or loss is as fako

December 31,

2015
Difference between carrying amount and contracoaunt at maturity:
Fair value $ 12,703,063
Amount payable at maturity 13,152,000
$ (448,937)
Change in Fair
Values
Resulting from
Credit Risk
Variations
Change in amount in the year
2015 $ 2,168
Accumulated amount of change
As of December 31, 2015 $ 2,168

The change in fair value attributable to changeradit risk was calculated as the difference betwee
total change in fair value of bank debentures &edchange in fair value due to change in markét ris
factors alone. The change in fair value due toketarisk factors was calculated using benchmark
interest yield curves as at the end of the repgnpi@riod holding. The fair value of bank debergure
were estimated by discounting future cash flowsgisjuoted benchmark interest yield curves as at the
end of the reporting period and by obtaining lergigstes for borrowing of similar maturity to estitma
credit risk margin.
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f.

Information on financial risk management

1)

2)

Risk management

The objective of risk management is to developundaisk management mechanism, and on the
basis of the risk tolerance level and the expecttdrn level, pursue the maximum value of

stockholders’ investments. The main risks facedh®yBank include the business credit risk in-

and off- balance-sheet, market risks (includingnest, exchange, equity security, and commodity
risks) and liquidity risk.

The Bank has risk management policies and risk toong procedures, which have been reviewed
and approved by the Board and are used to effégidentify, measure, monitor and control credit,
market, and operating and liquidity risks.

The Board, the highest decision-making unit forribke management, takes charge of approving the
risk management policy and system and building ritele management culture. It also takes
ultimate responsibility for overall risk management

Under the risk management decision approved bdaed, the risk management committee takes
charge of and reviews all the Bank’'s risk managdmiemplementation, capital adequacy
assessment, and risk exposure management. It@ismunicates and the inter-departmental risk
management issues and coordinates issue handlthgartinually monitor the execution of risk
management procedures. The risk management depdrtis responsible for planning and
designing the risk management system, deliberatpgal allocation, setting up the instruments for
risk measurement and capital provision, and manigorisk control. This department also
regularly prepares reports for submission to semianagement, the risk management committee
and the Board.

Under the business management regulation and ol&ypthe business supervising unit manages
and oversees each business unit toward propemméiagement and carries out risk review and
control. In addition, the Audit Department inde@ently audits at least once a year all risk-related
businesses and timely provides suggestions foraugment.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to a borrower, a financial instent issuer or a transaction counterparty

undergoing financial difficulty or other adverséusiions (such as a dispute between the borrower
and its business partner), which could result &3 ldue to breach of contract. Credit risk can come
from in- and off-balance-sheet items. On-balarmesitems are mainly lending, due from bank

and call loans to other banks, security investnad derivatives. Off-balance sheet items are
mainly guarantees, acceptance, letters of credil@an commitments.

The risk management policy, which is founded on Hasic principles of safety, liquidity,
profitability, welfare and growth, is implemented thhe credit risk management division toward the
cultivation of a risk management culture. All @md off- balance sheet transactions are should be
detailed analyzed in detail to identify existingdapotential credit risk. Based on the Bank’s
business characteristics and the principle of wdskersification, risk status is analyzed and
evaluated, centralized limits are set, and a riskitoring and alert mechanism has been developed
and operated. For a more effective credit risklatéon, an internal rating system has been
created to enhance the ability to quantify risk.
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The Bank’s main business items that are measurdanaged for credit risks are as follows:
a) Loans business (including loan commitment aradantees):

Credit assets are classified into five categoridn. addition to normal credit assets that are
classified as sound assets, the unsound assetdaasified, on the basis of the valuation of
collaterals and the length of time the paymentsobmr overdue, as special mention,
substandard, with collectability high doubtful awodcollectible. The Bank also sets up
policies for the management of doubtful credits #redcollection of overdue debts to deal with
collection problems.

The Bank applies to its credit business the s@ddlbPs of credit analysis” as the basis for
lending approval and evaluation of its counterparti These 5Ps are: People (know
customers’ background and their credit status wpllypose (what will the fund be used for);
payment (the borrower’s ability to repay an obligatwhen it falls due); protection (the Bank’
recourse on repayment defaults); and perspectiwe the credit is seen in light of rewards and
risks). After a loan is granted, the transact®meviewed and monitored to ensure creditor’s
rights of the Bank.

To quantify credit risk, the Bank applies statigtimethods using with customers’ qualitative
data and lending history to develop a rating modmieorporate finance and consumer finance.
This module is used to create an internal credimgasystem for risk evaluation, in which 9 is
the base grade of the credit quality of corporatgamers, and 8 or 10 on the business segment
consumer customers.

The 5P credit analysis and the module rating sjpatlif apply to corporate customers. Micro
credits and residential mortgages are assessedihy the credit rating model, and consumer
loans are assessed individually for default risks.

b) Due from and call loans to other banks

The Bank evaluates the credit status of countegsabefore closing deals. The Bank grants
different limits to the counterparties on the badisheir respective credit ratings as suggested
by domestic and foreign credit rating agencies.

¢) Investments in debt instruments and derivatives

The Bank identifies and manages credit risks frambt dnstruments through the use of external
credit ratings of the debt instruments along whk evaluation of credit qualities of bonds,
regional conditions and counterparty risks.

The Bank conducts derivative transactions with ob@nks and sets the credit limits (including

lending limits) at their credit rating and the ramkgiven by the Banker magazine. The credits
extended to general customers are monitored inrdacoe with the related contract terms and
conditions and the credit limits for derivativestaddished through normal credit granting

processes.

The Bank has a series of measures for credit gigatdi reduce credit risks. One of the procedures
is asking for collaterals from the borrowers. TBowe a debt, the Bank manages and assesses the
collaterals following the procedures that deterntime scope of collateralization and valuation of
collaterals and the process of disposition. Inditreontracts, the Bank stipulates the security
mechanism for debts; the conditions and terms &diaterals; and the terms and conditions of
offsetting to state clearly that the Bank resemhesright to reduce the granted quota, to reduee th
repayment period, to demand immediate settlemetd offset the debts of the borrowers by their
deposits in the Bank in order to reduce the cmisks.
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To avoid the concentration of credit risks, the Baets up centralized credit limits for business
segments, countries, collaterals, groups, and kaitn financing. Monthly, or more frequently,
as needed, the Bank reviews credit limits, monitbesactual risk-exposure condition and whether
the usage rate of limits meets relevant regulatiand reports the review results to superior
management, risk management committee and the Bmaiddically. If there is a possibility of
breach of the credit limits, the related departm@ndivision will apply appropriate procedures to
ensure that the credit limits are followed.

The Bank settles most of its transactions at gamssunts. For further reduction of credit risks,
settlement netting is used for some counterpaoties some circumstances where the transactions
are terminated because of counterparty’s default.

The maximum exposures to credit risks of assettherbalance sheets without consideration of
guarantees or other credit enforcement instrumegusoximate the assets’ carrying amounts. The
maximum exposures of off-balance sheet items tditcrisks without consideration of guarantees

or other credit enforcement instruments are asvid|

December 31
2015 2014

Irrevocable loan commitments issued $ 100,677,660 $ 86,545,940

Irrevocable credit card commitments 37,667,998 36,224,758
Letters of credit issued yet unused 17,365,650 21,907,342
Other guarantees 75,846,447 72,135,567

The Bank’ management believes its ability to miiencredit risk exposures on off-balance sheet
items is mainly due to its rigorous evaluation tédit extended and the periodic reviews of these
credits.

Concentration of credit risk exists when countetiparto financial transactions are individuals or

groups engaged in similar activities or activiiieshe same region, which would cause their ability
to meet contractual obligations to be similarlyeafed by changes in economic or other conditions.
The profile by group or industry, regions and deltals of obligations that were 10% or more of

total outstanding loans is as follows:

December 31

Credit Risk Profile by Group 2015 2014
or Industry Amount % Amount %
Natural person $ 811,865,538 39 $ 766,147,304 39
Manufacturing 322,834,983 16 317,386,644 16

Some financial assets held by the Bank, such ds &iad cash equivalents, due from the Central
Bank and call loans to other banks, financial asaéffair value through profit or loss, securities

purchased under resell agreements and refundapésitle are exposed to low credit risks because
the counterparties have high credit ratings.

In addition to the above assets, credit qualityyamaof other financial assets are as follows:

a) Credit quality analysis of discounts, loans ewtivables

Provision for Impairment Losses (D)

With Objective | With No Objective
Evidence of Evidence of
Impairment Impairment

Net
(A)+(B)+
(C)-(D)

Total
(A)+(B)+(C)

Neither Past Due
Nor Impaired (A)

Past Due But Not

December 31, 2015 Impaired (B)

Impaired (C)

Receivables

Credit cards $ 2,549,807 $ 27,980 | $ 74336 | $ 2,652,123 $ 34983 $ 18435 $ 2,598,705

Others
Discounts and loans

10,767,628

1,960,726,5

5

26,551
8,385,747

519,669
25,528,469

11,313,848
1,994,640,751

323,002
6,895,107

220,344
14,357,758

10,770,502
1,973,387,886
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Provision for Impairment Losses (D) Net
Neither Past Due| Past Due But Not . Total With Objective |With No Objective
December 31, 2014 Nor Impaired (A) Impaired (B) Impaired (C) (A)+(B)+(C) Evidence of Evidence of (?(%;(?ID);
Impairment Impairment

Receivables

Credit cards $ 2,431,203 $ 24,752 | $ 89,248 | $ 2,545,203 $ 45339 | $ 14181 | $ 2,485,683

Others 10,572,237 24,558 453,368 11,050,163 278,219 183,459 10,588,485
Discounts and loans 1,835,148,736 6,661,544 34,397,471 1,876,207,751 9,508,113 12,548,946 1,854,150,692

b) Credit quality analysis of discounts and loaospast due and not impaired

Items

December 31,

December 31,

2015 2014
Loans
Secured $ 1,393,174,736 $ 1,293,517,863
Unsecured 567,551,799 541,630,873
Total 1,960,726,53% 1,835,148,736

c) Credit quality analysis of securities

Neither Past | Past Due But Total Provision for Net
December 31, 2015 Due Nor Not Impaired | Impaired (C) (A)+(B)*+(C) Impairment (A)+(B)+
Impaired (A) (B) Losses (D) (C)-(D)
Available-for-sale
financial assets
Debt instruments $ 91,593,863% -1 $ -| $ 91,593,863 $ 3,288| $ 91,590,575
Equities 3,975,015 - - 3,975,015 - 3,975,015
Others 319,261 - - 319,261 - 319,261
Held-to-maturity financial
assets
Debt instruments 42,103,045 - - 42,103,045 14,802 42,088,243
Others 305,784 - - 305,784 - 305,784
Other financial assets
Debt instruments 82,693,056 - - 82,693,056 - 82,693,056
Equities 4,092,383 - - 4,092,383 - 4,092,383
Others 14,030,131 - - 14,030,137 - 14,030,137
Neither Past | Past Due But Total Provision for Net
December 31, 2014 Due Nor Not Impaired | Impaired (C) (A)+(B)*+(C) Impairment (A)+(B)+
Impaired (A) (B) Losses (D) (C)-(D)
Available-for-sale
financial assets
Debt instruments $ 66,113,701% -1 $ -| $ 66,113,701 $ -| $ 66,113,701
Equities 3,507,963 - - 3,507,963 - 3,507,963
Others 152,837 - - 152,837 - 152,837
Held-to-maturity financial
assets
Debt instruments 17,609,768 - - 17,609,768 10,198 17,599,570
Others 2,446,547 - - 2,446,547 - 2,446,547
Other financial assets
Debt instruments 82,215,856 - - 82,215,856 3,167 82,212,689
Equities 3,397,849 - 48,769 3,446,618 23,835 3,422,783
Others 34,968,884 - - 34,968,885, - 34,968,885

The processing delays by the borrowers and othaiirestrative reasons may cause financial
assets to become past due but not impaired. Asedefn the internal rules governing the

Bank’s risk management, financial asset that ast gae within 90 days are not deemed as
impaired, unless there are evidences that indiogtairment.
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The vintage analysis of financial assets that as¢ gue but not impaired is as follows:

December 31, 2015
Past Due by
Item Paslt I\?Ilcj)?]tlf-ljp to Over 1 Month- Total
3 Months

Receivables

Credit cards $ 22,337 $ 5,643 $ 27,980

Others 16,298 10,254 26,551
Loans

Secured 5,879,070 1,356,697 7,235,767

Unsecured 902,419 247,561 1,149,980
Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -
Held-to-maturity financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -
Other financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -

December 31, 2014
Past Due by
Item Paslt I\?ILcj)ﬁtlr:p t0 Over 1 Month- Total
3 Months

Receivables

Credit cards $ 19,109 $ 5,643 $ 24,752

Others 13,763 10,795 24,558
Loans

Secured 4,819,281, 1,332,310 6,151,591

Unsecured 401,927 108,026 509,953
Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -
Held-to-maturity financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -
Other financial assets

Debt instruments - - .

Others - - -

3) Market risks

Market risk refers to the risk of losses in posificarising from adverse movements of market
prices. It refers to interest rates, exchangesyatguity security prices, commaodity prices, etc.

The main market risks that the Bank faces are y@geiturity, interest rate, and exchange rate risks.
The market risk position of equity security mairihcludes domestic listed and OTC stocks,

domestic stock index options and stock market infdéxres; the position of interest rate mainly

includes short-term bills, bonds and interest rdégivative instruments; and the instruments

exposed to exchange rate risk mainly include spotracts and forward contracts and derivatives
denominated in foreign currency.
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Under the market risk management policies apprdwedhe board of directors, the new Basel
Capital Accord and regulations implemented by ratdvauthorities and in consideration of the
Bank’s own market risk management system and igsadivrisk management goals and product
features, the Bank has set all types of investraatiiorization limits and stop-loss rules, regularly
reviews the customers’ credit status and compilasagement information reports to control all
types of market risks effectively.

The Bank's market risk management procedures ieclutsk identification, evaluation,
measurement, monitoring, and reporting. Everysunigk management personnel analyze data on
market risk position and evaluate measurement rdsthiocluding the statistical basic measurement
method, sensitivity analysis, and situational asigly Monitoring content includes trading
processes, collective and individual, of all traotigen units and all financial instruments, such as
change of position, change of profit and loss,itrggbattern, and if trading objects are transacted
within the authorized scope and limits.

The Bank’s business units and risk management haie established market risk factors for
identifying risk exposure positions and use thestofrs to measure market risks. The market risk
factors refer to the components of financial insteats’ position, such as profit and loss and
sensitivity to risk, which might be affected bydrgst rates, exchange rates and equity security
market prices.

The Bank’s risk management unit reports to managémeriodically the execution status of
measures on market risk management, investmentiggasi and profit and loss control so that
management can fully understand the status of rharke management. The Bank also has
cleared reporting procedures and rules for allgygetransaction limits and the stop-loss ordef. |
any transaction amount reaches the limit, the kisp-order is executed immediately; if the
stop-loss order is not executed, the transaction isnrequired to explain the reasons for
non-execution and prepare a response plan for rearey’s approval.

The Bank applies market risk sensitivity as a rightrol instrument. Market risk sensitivity
position refers to the change in the value of atjposdue to a change in a certain market risk
factor. Market risk factors include interest rateschange rates, and equity security prices. The
Bank’s position sensitivity exposure trading bookitains all types of positions exposed to market
risk and the range of change to which sensitivitglgsis applied under various pressure scenarios
for all types of risk factors.

Assuming all other factors are held constant, ffects of risks within defined change scenarios are
shown below:

A . December 31,| December 31,
Main Risk Change Scenario 2015 2014
Interest rate curve increased 100 basis
Interest rate risk | points $ (25,435) $ (94,508)
Interest rate curve fell 100 basis points 25,524 96,870
USD/NT$, EUR/NTS$ increased 3% (86,027 (82)66
USD/NT$, EUR/NTS fell 3% 86,027 82,194
Exchange rate ns@tg((;:s (RMB, AUD etc.)/NT$ increased (18,673) 35,485
Others (RMB, AUD etc.)/NT$ fell 5% 18,673 (866)
Equity security |Equity security price increased by 15% 12,369 13,441
price risk Equity security price fell by 15% (12,369) 3(441)
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Average amount and average interest rate of irnttessing assets and interest-bearing liabilities

are as follows:

Average balance is calculated by the daily averbglances of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities.

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate (%) Balance Rate (%)
Interest-earning assets
Due from banks and other financial assets - dua fro
banks $ 32,145,426 2.35 $ 39,147,531 3.68
Due from the Central Bank 602,415,776 0.75 599,027,661 0.77
Call loans to banks 82,635,880 1.17 72,043,662 1.21
Held-for-trading financial assets 31,818,557 0.76 35,488,190 0.74
Financial assets designated as at fair value throug
profit or loss 140,102 5.99 280,079 6.28
Securities purchased under resell agreements 1,894,914 0.46 1,150,187 0.62
Discounts and loans 1,908,703,823 2.12 1,920,309,106 2.08
Available-for-sale financial assets 79,494,683 1.80 57,435,929 1.64
Held-to-maturity financial assets 31,668,410 1.81 16,489,401 1.82
Debt instruments with no active market 81,837,519 1.79 85,412,305 1.73
Interest-bearing liabilities
Due to the Central Bank and other banks 223,584,339 0.40 248,756,371 0.63
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss 9,686,723 4.18 - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 21,520,863 0.45 25,506,195 0.49
Demand deposits 441,434,653 0.14 398,559,146 0.14
Savings - demand deposits 718,931,183 0.39 681,221,574 0.40
Time deposits 459,583,913 1.18 469,369,599 1.21
Time savings deposits 695,132,173 1.33 715,754,182 1.35
Treasury deposits 73,684,825 0.85 77,410,304 0.81
Negotiable certificates of deposits 1,739,192 0.39 2,063,198 0.39
Structured products 6,623,598 1.39 11,506,151 1.96
Bank debentures 76,956,575 1.56 98,957,589 1.79
The exchange rate risk is as follows:
December 31, 2015
(In Thousands)
Foreign Carrying
Currencies Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 9,378,098 32.8800 $ 308,351,864
RMB 9,443,309 4.9930 47,150,444
AUD 627,631 23.9750 15,047,459
EUR 376,582 35.9200 13,526,825
JPY 48,856,317 0.2730 13,337,774
HKD 1,465,852 4.2420 6,218,146
(Continued)
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ZAR
GBP
CAD
NZD
CHF
SGD
SEK
THB
KHR
PHP
MYR

Financial liabilities

Monetary items
usD
RMB
AUD
JPY
GBP
EUR
ZAR
HKD
NZD
CAD
CHF
SGD
SEK
THB
PHP
KHR
MYR

December 31, 2014

Financial assets

Monetary items
usD
RMB
AUD
JPY
HKD

Foreign
Currencies

$ 972,188
28,735
27,447
19,499

3,627
2,417
4,358
10,234
751,603
2,581

7

10,045,975
9,190,733
678,450
32,415,488
157,243
185,423
2,568,244
593,004
85,355
69,632
5,251
6,124
14,172
11,050
133
2,885

Foreign
Currencies

$ 8,626,969
9,162,316
479,110
45,036,993
2,143,327
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2.1200
48.7500
23.7200
22.5000
33.2350
23.2500

3.9100

0.9168

0.0081

0.7007

7.6510

32.8800
4.9930
23.9750
0.2730
48.7500
35.9200
2.1200
4.2420
22.5000
23.7200
33.2350
23.2500
3.9100
0.9168
0.7007
0.0081
7.6510

Exchange Rate

31.6700
5.0990
26.0250
0.2656
4.0820

Carrying
Amount

$ 2,061,039
1,400,808
651,032
438,733
120,544
56,207
17,040
9,383
6,068
1,809

54

330,311,654
45,889,329
16,265,841

8,849,428
7,665,610
6,660,380
5,444,677
2,515,523
1,920,493
1,651,680
174,523
142,383
55,413
10,131

93

23

3

(Concluded)

(In Thousands)

Carrying
Amount

$ 273,216,109
46,718,650
12,468,842
11,961,825

8,749,061
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Foreign Carrying

Currencies Exchange Rate Amount

EUR $ 186,856 38.5400 $ 7,201,415
ZAR 454,326 2.7400 1,244,852
NzD 23,968 24.8500 595,594
GBP 10,346 49.3400 510,487
CAD 7,878 27.3200 215,235
CHF 4,550 32.0450 145,797
SGD 2,058 24.0000 49,383
SEK 6,309 4.1000 25,868
THB 9,566 0.9683 9,262
KHR 538,571 0.0078 4,203
PHP 2,030 0.7074 1,436
MYR 7 9.0680 64

Investment accounted for using equity
method
EUR 46,155 38.54 1,778,832

Financial liabilities

Monetary items
usD 8,806,223 31.6700 278,893,078
RMB 7,539,054 5.0990 38,441,637
AUD 506,014 26.0250 13,169,011
JPY 30,812,811 0.2656 8,183,883
ZAR 2,400,419 2.7400 6,577,147
EUR 165,647 38.5400 6,384,027
HKD 768,642 4.0820 3,137,597
SEK 569,636 4.1000 2,335,507
CAD 72,509 27.3200 1,980,933
GBP 33,545 49.3400 1,655,112
NzD 49,455 24.8500 1,228,962
SGD 5,415 24.0000 129,971
CHF 3,464 32.0450 111,001
THB 8,812 0.9683 8,532
PHP 1,111 0.7074 786
KHR 2,883 0.0078 22
MYR - 9.0680 3

(Concluded)

4) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is inherent in all bank operationscamight be affected by specific or general industr
and environmental events. These events includditaedated events, mergers or acquisitions,
systemic changes and natural disasters. The Befitked liquidity risk as the inability to realize

assets or to obtain financing for meeting obligaiashen they fall due, resulting in loss.

The liquidity risk management strategy is basedhm overall risk management objectives and
involves liquidity risk, identification, measurentgmonitoring and control to maintain the Bank’s
appropriate liquidity and ensure adequate fundmgniieeting liability obligations or for capital
growth.

The liquidity risk management procedures covertyges of business activities and financing
products.
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For adequate liquidity for all types of depositse Bank follows the relevant regulations issued by
the Central Bank to estimate the liquidity reseraad calculates and controls daily the liquidity
reserve ratios.

For the Bank's operating liquidity, the fund disbement unit performs daily cash flow
management and monitoring of the payments schextutbe basis of detailed reports by different
departments and relevant rules.

The risk management department regularly genendsksreports, which include the liquidity
reserve ratios and the maturity analysis of insemt® and transactions denominated in major
foreign currencies, and submits them to the Asedtlaability Management Committee and the
Board as reference for decision making.

The Bank stipulates liquidity risk limits, whichearegularly monitored and reviewed by the risk
management department. If a liquidity risk linstéxceeded or other exception situations occur,
the business supervising unit immediately devebggsropriate contingency measures and submits
them to the Asset and Liability Management Comnaifte approval and implementation.

The Bank contingency measures for business emergemsudden liquidity crisis are aimed at
quick crisis resolution and resumption of normagi@ions.

The Bank’s liquidity reserve ratios were 23.48% a&2l44% in December 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

The Bank disclosed the analysis of cash outflowson-derivative financial liabilities by their
residual maturities as of the balance sheet dafBlse amounts of cash outflows are based on
contractual cash flows, so some amounts may no¢gpond to those shown in the balance sheets.

December 31, 2015 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days 181 Days-1 Year Over 1 Year Total

Due to the Central Bank an

other banks $ 129,477,617 $ 60,215,033 $ 498,373 $ 8,181,954| $ - | $ 198,372,977
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or losg - - - - 13,152,000 13,152,000
Securities sold under

repurchase agreements 11,324,769 4,138,888 1,961,817 27,006 - 17,452,480
Payables 26,627,986 1,245,183 3,703,214 1,641,029 1,574,763 34,792,175
Deposits and remittances 239,070,583 349,534,035 356,273,183 608,255,772 951,494,918 2,504,628,491
Bank debentures - - - 69,610,000 69,610,000
Other items of cash outflow

on maturity 6,944,909 51,015 28,891 76,156 609,190 7,710,161

December 31, 2014 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days 181 Days-1 Year Over 1 Year Total

Due to the Central Bank an

other banks $ 99,187,217 $ 49,429,309 $ 15,137,870| $ 12,247,519| $ -| $ 176,001,915
Securities sold under

repurchase agreements 17,825,644 3,208,667 2,143,891 1,503 - 23,179,705
Payables 32,586,227 1,449,399 4,136,164 2,360,120 675,110 41,207,020
Deposits and remittances 239,347,814 343,533,217 333,366,604 605,675,249 875,424,031 2,397,346,915|
Bank debentures 4,000,000 18,500,000 - 69,610,000 92,110,000
Other items of cash outflow

on maturity 7,550,488 690,785 34,799 81,459 704,058 9,061,589

In the above table, the maturity analysis of depaaid remittances by residual-maturity period was
based on the Bank’s historical experience. Assgrthat all demand deposits as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 must be repaid soon, the capitalneipee will be increased by $1,265,775,142
thousand and $1,159,478,601 thousand, respectivighin 30 days these balance sheet dates.
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The Bank assesses the maturity dates of contiactsderstand the basic elements of all derivative
financial instruments shown in the balance sheetfie amounts used in the maturity analyses of
derivative financial liabilities are based on castual cash flows, so some of these amounts may
not correspond to the amounts shown in the balaheets. The maturity analysis of derivative
financial liabilities is as follows:

a) Derivative financial liabilities to be settletiret amounts

December 31, 2015 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Dgys l?_lYZ‘?r/S Over 1 Year Total
Derivative financial
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Currency $ 1452| $ 3,668 | $ 2279 | $ 1360 $ -1 8 8,759
Interest (2,141 (435) (2,810) (4,510) (11,384) (21,280)
December 31, 2014 0-30 Days 31-90 Days  91-180 Days 1811Y223r’5 Over 1 Year Total
Derivative financial
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Currency $ 30,182 $ 17,701 | $ 49,514| $ 110,225| $ 4,700 | $ 212,322
Interest (2,593 (543) (4,292) (3,424) 43,697 32,845
b) Derivative financial liabilities to be settledgross amounts
December 31, 2015 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days181 Days-1 Year| Over 1 Year Total
Derivative financial liabilitieg
at fair value through profit
or loss
Currency derivatives
Cash outflow $ 121,940,694 $ 61,218639| $ 8,332,811 $ 6,721,102 $ 139,693 | $ 198,352,943
Cash inflow 122,438,787, 61,450,896 8,404,151 6,782,455 139,717 199,216,006
Interest derivatives
Cash outflow 136,070 1,887,838 1,394,754 140,160 851,454 4,410,276
Cash inflow 136,452 1,754,559 1,321,384 136,070 1,026,649 4,375,114
Total cash outflow 122,076,764 63,106,477 9,727,565 6,861,262 991,147 202,763,219
Total cash inflow 122,575,239 63,205,455 9,725,535 6,918,525 1,166,366 203,591,120
Net cash flow 498,471 98,978 (2,030) 57,263 175,219 827,901
December 31, 2014 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days181 Days-1 Year| Over 1 Year Total
Derivative financial liabilitieg
at fair value through profit
or loss
Currency derivatives
Cash outflow $ 99,402,667 $ 68577,981| $ 55598467 | $ 23,656,876 $ 1,696,359 | $ 248,932,350
Cash inflow 145,125,350, 50,949,366 26,825,975 17,301,318 2,349,112 242,551,121
Interest derivatives
Cash outflow 332,525 1,183,200 106,693 20,866,476 3,109,322 25,598,216
Cash inflow 332,628 1,184,847 106,906 20,875,704 3,109,339 25,609,424
Total cash outflow 99,735,197 69,761,181 55,705,160 44,523,352 4,805,681 274,530,566
Total cash inflow 145,457,979 52,134,213 26,932,881 38,177,022 5,458,451 268,160,545
Net cash flow 45,722,784 (17,626,968 (28,772,279 (6,346,330) 652,770 (6,370,021)|

The Bank conducted maturity analysis of off-balarsteet items based on the residual
maturities as of the balance sheet dates. Foffitlamcial guarantee contracts issued, the
maximum amounts of the guarantees are includedhenetrliest periods that the guarantee
obligation might have been required to be fulfilledrhe amounts used in the maturity analysis
of off-balance sheet items are based on contracasdl flows, so some of these amounts may
not correspond to those shown in the balance sheets

181 Days-

1 Year Over 1 Year Total

December 31, 2015 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Dgys

Irrevocable loan
commitments issued $ 1,175,415% 6,237,551 $ 7,763,379| $ 11,348,130 $ 74,153,185 $100,677,660
Irrevocable credit card

commitments 13,90( 128,504 755,729 1,347,700 35,422,165 37,667,998
Letters of credit issued Y

unused 4,430,34 8,766,697 2,230,412 483,024 1,455,177 17,365,650
Other guarantees 3,023,999 6,402,251 6,562,665 9,228,210 50,629,322 75,846,447
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December 31, 2014 0-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Dgys l?_lYZ?r/S' Over 1 Year Total
Irrevocable loan

commitments issued $ 1,380,298% 4,522,267| $ 10,127,928 $ 6,025,695 $ 64,489,752 $ 86,545,940
Irrevocable credit card

commitments 46,72( 373,476 400,932 1,994,668 33,408,962 36,224,758
Letters of credit issued Y

unused 4,688,231 10,902,026 3,070,995 1,851,105 1,394,985 21,907,342
Other guarantees 5,501,045 7,439,428 5,155,563 6,263,807 47,775,724 72,135,567

g. Transfers of financial assets

Under the Bank operations, most of derecognizeahfiral assets are securities sold under repurchase
agreements, and the contractual cash flows have beasferred to others. The Bank has the
responsibility to repurchase transferred finanaidets at fixed prices, and can not use, sell k@
transferred financial assets. However, the Barstillsin the risk exposure of interest rate anedat,

so the transferred financial assets can not be vedhentirely. The information on derecognized
financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2015
Carrying Carrying Fair Value of | Fair Value of
Amount of Amount of .
. . Transferred Related Net Position of]
Financial Assets | Transferred Related . . . . )
i . , . Financial Financial Fair Value
Financial Financial o
R Assets Liabilities
Assets Liabilities
Financial assets at
FVTPL —
Securities sold
under repurchasge
agreements $ 5124914% 5,126,880| $ 5,124,914| $ 5,126,880 $ (1,966)
Available-for-sale
financial assets -
Securities sold
under repurchasg
agreements 11,559,296 12,325,600 11,559,296 12,325,600 (766,304)

h. Offsetting financial assets and financial liaia

The Bank is eligible to present in the balance slme a net basis certain derivative assets and
derivative liabilities pertaining to transactionsttwcounterparties under enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements and thereiigemtion either to make settlements on a net lmasis
to realize the asset and settle the liability stamgously. A master netting agreement providesfor
single net settlement of all financial instrumeatsered by the agreement if the counterparty defaul
on any contract. Parties may also settle trarmactat gross amounts if a single settlement results
cash flows being equivalent to a single net amount.

The tables below present the quantitative inforamtn financial assets and financial liabilitiegtth

have been offset in the balance sheets or thatowered by enforceable master netting arrangeneents
similar agreements.
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December 31, 2015

Gross Amounts Net Amounts of

of Recognized Financial
Gross Amounts Financial Assets Related Amounts Not Offset in
of Recognized Liabilities Presented in the Balance Sheet
Financial Offset in the the Balance Financial Cash Collateral
Financial Assets Assets Balance Sheet Sheet Instruments Received Net Amount
Resell agreements $ 209592 $ - $ 209592 $ (209,592) $ - $ -
Gross Amounts Net Amounts of
of Recognized Financial
Gross Amounts Financial Liabilities Related Amounts Not Offset in
of Recognized  Assets Offset Presented in the Balance Sheet
Financial in the Balance the Balance Financial Cash Collateral
Financial Liabilities Liabilities Sheet Sheet Instruments Pledged Net Amount
Repurchase agreements $ 17,452,480 $ - $ 17,452,480 $(16,684,210) $ - $ 768,270

December 31, 2014

Gross Amounts Net Amounts of

of Recognized Financial
Gross Amounts Financial Assets Related Amounts Not Offset in
of Recognized Liabilities Presented in the Balance Sheet
Financial Offset in the the Balance Financial Cash Collateral
Financial Assets Assets Balance Sheet Sheet Instruments Received Net Amount
Resell agreements $ 1851763 $ - $ 1851763 $ (1,851,763) $ - $ -
Gross Amounts Net Amounts of
of Recognized Financial
Gross Amounts Financial Liabilities Related Amounts Not Offset in
of Recognized  Assets Offset Presented in the Balance Sheet
Financial in the Balance the Balance Financial Cash Collateral
Financial Liabilities Liabilities Sheet Sheet Instruments Pledged Net Amount

Repurchase agreements $ 23,179,705 $ - $ 23,179,705 $(21,178,875) $ - $ 2,000,830

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

In according to the authority’s regulation for miples of capital adequacy management, the Batkdis

the risks into the capital adequacy evaluation scopn accordance with the operation plans and éudg
targets, which approved by the board of directaiss) considering the Bank’s development strateapital
adequacy, liabilities ratios, and dividend polittye Bank proposes capital adequacy evaluation plaich
include stress testing, estimation for each seasoapital adequacy ratio, etc. to ensure the dapita
adequacy ratio can be reached and capital strustsmind.

To monitor capital adequacy, the risk managemeptdment regularly reports capital adequacy ratios
every month and also quarterly reviews the exenuitatus of and actual operation data variatiorthen
Bank's capital adequacy evaluation plan. Whenaobteial capital adequacy ratio might go lower than
target, the Bank immediately reviews the causespgres a report and proposes a response strategy to
maintain the appropriate capital adequacy levels.

The Banking Law and related regulations requirg tha Bank maintain the minimum requirement for
unconsolidated and consolidated capital adequdimsr@CAR), including the common equity Tier 1 cati
Tier 1 capital ratio, and total capital adequadiora
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Information on the Bank’s CAR is as follows:

Risk-weighted assets

(Unit:  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)
Year December 31, 2015
Items Standalone Consolidated
Common equity $ 169,179,043 $ 170,222,273
o M : -
£ g |Other Tier 1 capital - -
5 & |Tier 2 capital 60,385,900 61,546,641
=@ Eligible capital 229,564,943 231,768,913
Standardized approach 1,737,278,8541,739,194,177
o |Credit risk Internal ratings based approach - -
72} Securitization 750,679 750,679
s Basic indicator approach - -
Q. . .
S |operational risk |>tandardized approach/alternative 63325947 65,270,944
g standardized approach
o Advanced measurement approach - -
7 : Standardized approach 14,616,127 14,634,941
% Market risk
@ Internal model approach - -
@ 1,815,971,102 1,819,850,741

Capital adequacy ratio 12.64 12.74
Ratio of the common equity to risk-weighted assets 9.32 9.35
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 9.32 9.35
Ratio of leverage 5.25 5.28

Year

December 31, 2014

Items Standalone Consolidated
Common equity $ 137,511,724 $ 138,532,074
o M - -
£ g |Other Tier 1 capital - -
5 & |Tier 2 capital 76,451,804 77,587,128
=® Eligible capital 213,963,528 216,119,202
Standardized approach 1,611,020,6521,612,742,538
o |Credit risk Internal ratings based approach - -
7} Securitization -
< Basic indicator approach - -
9. . .
S |operational risk |>tandardized approach/alternative 58,820,779 59,992,738
% standardized approach
o Advanced measurement approach - -
P : Standardized approach 9,675,842 9,670,778
% Market risk
@ Internal model approach - -
@ Risk-weighted assets 1,679,517,273 1,682,406,054
Capital adequacy ratio 12.74 12.85
Ratio of the common equity to risk-weighted assets 8.19 8.23
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 8.19 8.23
Ratio of leverage 3.62 3.63

Note 1. Eligible capital and risk-weighted asseats ealculated under the “Regulations Governing the

Capital Adequacy Ratio of Banks” and the “Explanatof Methods for Calculating the Eligible
Capital and Risk -Weighted Assets of Banks.”

Note 2: Formulas used were as follows:

1) Eligible capital = The common equity + OtherrTlecapital + Tier 2 capital.
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Risk-weighted assets = Risk-weighted asset fedit risk + Capital requirements for
operational risk and market risk x 12.5.

Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital + Riskighted assets.

Ratio of the common equity to risk-weighted &sseThe common equity + Risk-weighted
assets.

Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted asset@he common equity + Other Tier 1 capital) +~
Risk-weighted assets.

Ratio of leverage = Tier 1 capital + Exposureagwgement.

40. ASSET QUALITY, CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXTENSIO NS, INTEREST RATE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

SENSITIVITY, PROFITABILITY AND MATURITY ANALYSIS OF

a. Asset quality: Table 1 (attached).

b. Concentration of credit extensions

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

December 31, 2015
Total Amount
of Credit
(I\Il?cigkl) Industry of Group Enterprise Endorsement of Z?rgz?ﬁf}ge
(Note 2) Other Equit
Transactions quity
(Note 3)

1 Group A $ 52,676,426 28.82
Railway transportation

2 Group B 23,325,210 12.76
Petroleum and coal products manufacturing

3 Group C 21,666,561 11.86
Harbor services

4 Group D 13,234,917 7.24
Computers and computing peripheral equipment

manufacturing

5 Group E 11,241,157 6.15
Shipping agency

6 Group F 10,795,986 5.91
Cotton and textile

7 Group G 9,763,984 5.34
Liquid crystal panel and component manufacturing

8 Group H 8,991,608 4.92
Cotton and textile

9 Group | 8,856,290 4.85
Other electronic parts and components manufactuming

classified elsewhere

10 Group J 6,177,585 3.38

Iron and steel smelting
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

December 31, 2014
Total Amount
of Credit
Rank Industry of Group Enterprise Endorsement of Percentat,ge
(Note 1) of Bank’s
(Note 2) Other Equit
Transactions quity
(Note 3)
1 Group A $ 53,351,408 35.49
Railway transportation
2 Group B 23,745,035 15.80
Petroleum and coal products manufacturing
3 Group C 20,471,293 13.62
Harbor services
4 Group F 12,544,042 8.35
Cotton and textile
5 Group E 11,536,425 7.68
Shipping agency
6 Group | 10,255,611 6.82
Other electronic parts and components manufactuming
classified elsewhere
7 Group G 10,244,921 6.82
Liquid crystal panel and component manufacturing
8 Group K 9,720,061 6.47
Cement manufacturing
9 Group L 8,767,179 5.83
Harbor services
10 Group M 8,109,260 5.40
Iron and steel smelting
Note 1. The list shows rankings by total amountcr#dit, endorsement or other transactions but

Note 2:

Note 3:

excludes government-owned or state-run enterprisiéshe borrower is a member of a group
enterprise, the total amount of credit, endorsenserdgther transactions of the entire group
enterprise must be listed and disclosed by codeliagdof industry. The industry of the
group enterprise should be presented as the iydoisthe member firm with the highest risk
exposure. The lines of industry should be desdribe accordance with the Standard
Industrial Classification System of the Republic dfhina published by the
Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Stias under the Executive Yuan.

Group enterprise refers to a group of o@igo entities as defined by Article 6 of
“Supplementary Provisions to the Taiwan Stock ErgeaCorporation Rules for Review of
Securities Listings.”

Total amount of credit, endorsement or mottnansactions is the sum of various loans
(including import and export negotiations, discanbverdrafts, unsecured and secured
short-term loans, margin loans receivable, unsecwaed secured medium-term loans,
unsecured and secured long-term loans and overoles), exchange bills negotiated,
accounts receivable factored without recourse,aoees and guarantees.
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c. Interest rate sensitivity information

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2015

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Items 1 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over One Year Total
One Year
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 2,224,055[78& 87,672,073 $ 11,322,931 $ 159,928,135 $ 2,482,978,925
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 909,691,5p8 1,199,678,568 122,411,693 52,746,552 2,284,528,341
Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,314,364,258 (1,112,006,495) (111,088,762 107,181,583 198,450,584
Net worth 172,638,090,
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liaedit 108.69
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 114.95

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2014

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Iltems 1 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over One Year Total
One Year
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 2,135,164,538 73,465,284 $ 11,949,803 $ 145,431,870 $ 2,366,011,495
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 947,553,008 1,122,120,375 119,175,955 50,439,303 2,239,288,731|
Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,187,611,440 (1,048,655,091) (107,226,152 94,992,567 126,722,764
Net worth 138,104,503]
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liaegit 105.66
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 91.76

Note 1: The above amounts included only New Taigaltar amounts held by the head office and
branches of the Bank (i.e., excluding foreign cockg.

Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and ligslitefer to interest-earning assets and inteesstifg
liabilities with revenues or costs that are affddtg interest rate changes.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interes4sensitive assets - Interest rate-sensitivelili@isi
Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assetdiabilities = Interest rate-sensitive assets/Irgere

rate-sensitive liabilities (in New Taiwan dollars).

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2015

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, %)

Items 1 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over One Year Total
One Year
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 10,149,865 $98,680 $ 151,491 $ 565,159 $ 11,565,145
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 10,403,374 993,494 1,109,895 15,000 12,521,763
Interest rate sensitivity gap (253,509) (294,864) (958,404) 550,159 (956,618
Net worth 307,844
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liaegit 92.36
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (310.75)
Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2014
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, %)
Items 1 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over One Year Total
One Year
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 10,710,1p5 $70,981 $ 132,636 $ 394,389 $ 12,108,061
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 10,639,807 727,954 827,580 - 12,195,341
Interest rate sensitivity gap 70,31 142,957 (694,944) 394,389 (87,280
Net worth 385,484
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liaedit 99.28
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (22.64)
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Note 1: The above amounts included only U.S. ddlamounts held by the head office, domestic
branches, OBU and overseas branches of the Bankeacdded contingent assets and
contingent liabilities.

Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and ligdslitefer to interest-earning assets and inte iegstitg
liabilities with revenues or costs that are affddig interest rate changes.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interet4sensitive assets - Interest rate-sensitiveliliaisi.

Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assetdidbilities = Interest rate-sensitive assets/Irdere
rate-sensitive liabilities (in U.S. dollars).

Profitability
Unit: %
ltems December 31
2015 2014

Return on total assets Beforg income tax 0.47 0.40

After income tax 0.41 0.35
Return on equity Beforg income tax 8.46 8.03

After income tax 7.28 6.99
Net income ratio 30.99 25.60

Note 1: Return on total assets = Income beforeraificome tax/Average total assets
Note 2: Return on equity = Income before (aftecpime tax/Average equity

Note 3: Net income ratio = Income after incomeTaxal net revenues

Note 4: Income before (after) income tax represimisme for each period-end date.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2015

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0 to 10 Days 11 to 30 Days 31 to 90 Days 91 to IBY/s lgrl]f\?)ézrto Over One Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 2,874,376,823 $  459,449,41 $ 634,146 $ 143,910,031 $ 189,898,63[L $ 30128H5 $ 1,441,519,341
Main capital outflow on
maturity 3,383,426,314 201,323,421 196,832 423,094,927 423,237,179 685,429,837  1,454,128,290
Gap (509,049,491) 258,125,988 141,471,487 (279,184,896) (233,338,548) (383,514,573) (12,608,949)

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2014

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0 to 10 Days 11 to 30 Days 31 to 90 Days 91 to IBY/s lgrl]f\?)ézrto Over One Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 2,772,108,302 $ 462,739,26 $ 532,297 $ 139,189,722 $ 165,210,51p $ 2690082 $ 1,392,518,497
Main capital outflow on
maturity 3,307,736,387 193,886,553 186,329 422,515,601 428,533,810 708,230,989  1,367,649,613
Gap (535,628,085) 268,852,709 155,618,476 (283,325,879)  (263,323,295) (438,318,980) 24,868,884

Note: The above amounts included only New Taiwdladamounts held by the Bank.
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2015

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0 to 30 Days 31 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Day: lgieD?éz:O Over One Year
Main capital inflow on maturity $ 19,969,621 ¥,751,534 $ 3,450,908 $ 2,294,511 $ 1535694 $ 4,936,968
Main capital outflow on maturity 24,145,661 0,178,451 4,407,558 2,491,497 3,621,382 2,846,773
Gap (4,176,040) (3,026,917) (956,650) (196,980) (2,085,688) 2,090,195
Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2014
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0 to 30 Days 31 to 90 Days 91 to 180 Day: lgieD?éz:O Over One Year
Main capital inflow on maturity $ 20,360,556 98,068,975 $ 3,377,144 $ 2,813,22 $ 1,150,089 $ 4,951,119
Main capital outflow on maturity 25,023,200 1,386,542 4,539,872 2,945,370 3,405,229 2,746,187
Gap (4,662,644) (3,317,567) (1,162,728) (132,141) (2,255,140) 2,204,932
Note: The above amounts included only U.S. dollaoants held by the Bank.

41. TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.’S TRUST BUSINESS UNDER THE TRUST LAW

a. Trust-related items are those shown in the idgllg balance sheets, statements of income and trust
property list

These items were managed by the Bank’s Trust Dmpatt However, these items were not included
in the financial statements.

Balance Sheets of Trust Accounts
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Trust Assets 2015 2014 Trust Liabilities 2015 2014
Cash in banks $ 1459189 $ 2,073,843 Payables
Accrued expense $ 3238 % 1,290
Short-term investments Others 2,403 2,605
Mutual funds 155,580,004 143,206,066 5,641 3,895
Stocks 1,628,673 1,128,249
157,208,677 144,334,315 Accounts payable on
securities under custody 67,632,891 62,177,011
Securities lending 804,036 149,781
Trust capital
Receivables 6,377 3,902 Cash 157,015,238 145,258,269
Real estate 35,583,450 25,788,673
Real estate Securities 2,219,984 1,211,634
Land 31,454,680 25,431,949 Others 176,070 133,798
Buildings 15,948 10,585 194,994,742 172,392,374
Construction in process 4,287,799 476,255
35,758,427 25,918,789 Reserves and retained
earnings
Securities under custody 67,632,891 62,177,011 Net income 252,803 64,141
Appropriation (60,145) -
Retained earnings 43,665 20,220
236,323 84,361
Total $ 262,869,597 $ 234,657,641 Total $ 262,869,597 $ 234,657,641
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Trust Property List
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Investment ltems 2015 2014
Cash in banks $ 1,459,189 $ 2,073,843
Short-term investments
Mutual funds 155,580,004 143,206,066
Stocks 1,628,673 1,128,249
Securities lending 804,036 149,781
Receivables
Accrued interest 2,623 2,938
Cash dividends - 4
Mutual funds - 500
Others 3,754 460
Real estate
Land 31,454,680 25,431,949
Buildings 15,948 10,585
Construction in process 4,287,799 476,255
Securities under custody 67,632,891 62,177,011
Total $ 262,869,597 $ 234,657,641
Statements of Income on Trust Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
2015 2014
Revenues
Interest revenue $ 4,193 $ 4,554
Cash dividends 42,705 18,823
Realized gain on investment - stocks 14,373 1,733
Unrealized gain on investment - stocks 354,349 62,536
Realized gain on investment - mutual funds 576 438
Unrealized gain on investment - mutual funds 1,284 2,653
Rentals 9,929 1,297
Others - 215
Total revenues 427,409 92,249
Expenses
Management fees 3,674 1,890
Taxes 335 373
Insurance fees - 42
Service charge 318 121
Postage 11 13
Unrealized loss on investment - stocks 163,465 22,009
Realized loss on investment - mutual funds 465 76
Unrealized loss on investment - mutual funds 5,069 3,213
Others 1,269 371
Total expenses 174,606 28,108
Income before income tax 252,803 64,141
Income tax expense - -
Net income $ 252,803 $ 64,141

b. Nature of trust business operations under thstTraw:
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42.

43.

44,

ALLOCATION OF REVENUE, COST AND EXPENSE THAT RE SULTED FROM THE
SHARING OF RESOURCES BETWEEN TAIWAN COOPERATIVE FIN ANCIAL HOLDING
COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Under cooperation arrangements, the Bank and Ta®aoperative Securities (TCS) promoted securities
brokerage business together; thus, related revarges/ed by the Bank were calculated as follows)
from the first year to fifth year (before Januar2@15, it was first and second year), revenuedase20%

of the net revenue derived from security transastiqb) related revenues from utilizing some opegat
sites and equipment by the TCS; and (c) receivingseselling service fees of $2,000 thousand ahnual

To promote the credit card business together, thekBand TCS signed cooperation arrangements,
marketing expenses paid by the Bank were basekeocartangements.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the accruedvades were $2,690 thousand and $2,871 thousand
(part of receivables), respectively. The reverftm® cross-selling transactions were $7,060 thodiseanul
$6,653 thousand (part of other noninterest gaie,in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

To promote the insurance business together, th& Bad BNP Paribas Cardif TCB Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. signed cooperation arrangements. The sefféies earned by the Bank were based on the agreed
percentage of the premiums from the insurance compgoroducts sold by the Bank.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the accruedvetleis were $2,111 thousand and $2,914 thousand,
respectively (part of receivables). The revenuemfcross-selling transactions were $26,219 thalisan
and $29,386 thousand (part of service fee incomig,im 2015 and 2014, respectively.

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Undistributed cash dividends approved by sharelhsldaeetings are $178,980 thousand and $181,542
thousand as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, regplycti

OTHER SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s application to set up the Changsha Bramdainland China was approved by the Financial
Supervisory Commission on December 31, 2015. TaekBwill invest RMB600,000 thousand in the
Changsha Branch, under the “Regulations Governiogrévals of Banks to Engage in Financial Activities
between the Taiwan Area and the Mainland Area.” ofAthe date of the accompanying independent
auditors’ report, the approval of the investmenthia Changsha Branch by the Investment Commission
under Mainland China’s Ministry of Economic Affaasd relevant authorities was being awaited.

To enhance financial cooperation between Chinalagan, the board of directors of the Bank approaed
memorandum on August 25, 2014, which was signetl Rihg An Pay and Chinapay. Details of this
cooperation will be shown in a contract.

To enhance the financial cooperation between th&sim China and those in Taiwan, the Bank’s badird
directors approved on December 22, 2014 the signfirgmemorandum of understanding (MOU) between
five Taiwan banks (Taiwan Bank, etc.) and five @sie banks (China Bank, etc.), and the Bank sidnied t
MOU.

On February 22, 2015, The Bank’s board of direcamgroved the Bank's merger with its own subsidiary

Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. (CIB). TEffective date of this merger is to be determibgd
management. In this merger, the Bank will be theigor entity.
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45. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
a. Related information of significant transactiamsl b. investees:
1) Financing provided: The Bank - not applicalitestee company - none or not applicable.

2) Endorsement/guarantee provided: The Bank -appiicable; investee company - none or not
applicable.

3) Marketable securities held: The Bank - notliapple; investee company - Table 2 (attached)

4) Marketable securities acquired and disposedt 0bsts or prices of at least NT$300 million o%4.0
of the paid-in capital (the Bank disclosed its istweents acquired or disposed of): Table 3
(attached)

5) Acquisition of individual real estate at cosisat least NT$300 million or 10% of the paid-in
capital: None.

6) Disposal of individual real estates at costatdeast NT$300 million or 10% of the paid-in dapi
None.

7) Allowance of service fees to related partieamnting to at least NT$5 million: None.

8) Receivables from related parties amounting ttdeast NT$300 million or 10% of the paid-in
capital: Table 4 (attached)

9) Sale of nonperforming loans: None.
10) Financial asset securitization: None.

11) Other significant transactions which may aftbet decisions of users of financial reports: Nbte
to the financial statements.

12) Percentage share in investees and relatednafmm: Table 5 (attached)

13) Derivative transactions: The Bank - Notes B,ahd 38 to the financial statements; investee
company: None.

c. Investment in Mainland China;

Based on “Regulations Governing Approvals of Batik&ngage in Financial Activities between the
Taiwan Area and the Mainland Area,” the Bank sethgSuzhou Branch, Tianjin Branch and Fuzhou
Branch in Mainland China. This investment had begproved by the Financial Supervisory
Commission. The 3 branches’ information - majoreraging items, capital stock, the way of
investment, investment inflows and outflows, thé&dhmg percentage, the investment income or loss, th
book value at year-end, the remitted investmenfitgrand the limit on the amount of investment in
Mainland China - can be seen in Table 7 (attached).
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

ASSET QUALITY - NONPERFORMING LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

TABLE 1

Period December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Nonperforming Ratio Of. Allowance for | Coverage Ratio| Nonperforming Ratio Of. Allowance for | Coverage Ratio
ltems Loans Nonperforming . Loans Nonperforming .
Loans (Note 1) Credit Losses (Note 3) Loans (Note 1) Credit Losses (Note 3)
Loans (Note 2) Loans (Note 2)
Corporate bankin Secured $ 3,362,084% 666,713,093 0.50 $ 6,133,312 182.43 $ 4,154,0383% 618,295,52( 0.67 $ 6,288,619 151.39
P 9/Unsecured 1,753,741 551,608,460 0.32 7,008,984 399.66 1,388,211 526,873,204 0.26 7,269,553 523.66
Housing mortgage (Note 4) 1,031,851 508,940,534 0.20 5,857,699 567.69 1,146,239 492,647,006 0.23 6,520,03% 568.82
Cash card ' - - - - - - - - -
Consumer banking Small-scale credit loans (Note [5) 47,115 12,544,692 0.38 204,713 434.50 39,567 12,290,737 0.32 210,711 532.54
Other (Note 6) Secured 592,128 245,391,020 0.24 1,896,174 320.23 354,000 217,296,569 0.16 1,621,616 458.08
Unsecured 18,278 9,442,950 0.19 151,983 831.51 27,174 8,804,715 0.31 146,525 539.21
Loan 6,805,197 1,994,640,751 0.34 21,252,865 312.30 7,109,224 1,876,207,751 0.38 22,057,059 310.26
Nonperformin Ratio of Nonperformin Ratio of
per 9 . Nonperforming | Allowance for | Coverage Ratio per! 9 : Nonperforming | Allowance for | Coverage Ratio
Receivables Receivables . : Receivables Receivables . :
(Note 1) Receivables Credit Losses (Note 3) (Note 1) Receivables Credit Losses (Note 3)
(Note 2) (Note 2)
Credit cards 8,207 2,660,556 0.31 74,750 910.81 17,95( 2,562,450 0.70 98,857 550.74
AC(CI\(I)th:tS7 )recelvable factored without recourse ) 216,084 i 3.552 ) ) 384,088 ) 4.432 )
Amounts of executed contracts on negotiated debis 15462 17,683
not reported as nonperforming loans (Note 8)
Amounts of executed contracts on negotlated debts 17,085 23.871
not reported as nonperforming receivables (Notg 8)
Amounts of executed debt_-restructurmg projects not 22322 27225
reported as nonperforming loans (Note 9)
Amounts of executed debt_-restruc_turlng projects not 61,678 70.215
reported as nonperforming receivables (Note 9)

Note 1: Nonperforming loans are reported to the authorities and disabotfedgublic, as required by the “Regulations Governing the Proceduresfon@nstitutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Nonperforming/Ndonsad Loans.”
Nonperforming credit card receivables are reported to the autsaaitid disclosed to the public, as required by the Banking Bureau's letddt 6, 2005 (Ref. No. 0944000378).

Note 2: Ratio of nonperforming loans:
Ratio of nonperforming receivables:

Nonperforming loans + Outstandamgdalance.
Nonperforming receivabl@ststanding receivable balance.

Note 3: Coverage ratio of loans:
Coverage ratio of receivables:

Allowance for credit lossek&ors + Nonperforming loans.
Allowance for credit losseefeivables + Nonperforming receivables.

Note 4: The mortgage loan is for house purchase or renovation and is fulgdsby housing that is purchased (owned) by the borrower, the spouse or the mdnen oithe borrowers.
Note 5: Based on the Banking Bureau'’s letter dated December 19, 2005 (Ref. N@103540), small-scale credit loans are unsecured, involve small amounts amt exelit cards and cash cards.

Note 6: Other consumers banking loans refer to secured or unsecuretiébaxstude housing mortgage, cash and credit card, and small-scélbared
(Continued)
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Note 7: As required by the Banking Bureau in its letterdidtdy 19, 2005 (Ref. No. 0945000494), accounts receivable factotteautviecourse are reported as nonperforming receivablbs wliree months after the factors or insurance
companies refuse to indemnify banks for any liabilities on these accounts.

Note 8: Amounts of executed contracts on negotiated debts that are not rapartegherforming loans or receivables are disclosed to the public in accosithribe Banking Bureau's letter dated April 25, 2006 (Ref. No. 09510001270).
Note 9: Amounts of executed debt-restructuring projects not reported as nomgegfloans or receivables are disclosed to the public in accordancéeviBanking Bureau’s letter dated September 15, 2008 (Ref. No. 09700318940).

(Concluded)
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD
DECEMBER 31, 2015
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 2

December 31, 2015

Holding Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Issue Relatlc_)nshlp with the Financial Statement Account Shares . Percentage of Market Value Note
Holding Company Carrying Value . or Net Asset
(Thousands) Ownership
Value
Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. Bonds
Government Bonds - 88 A3 - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 3,350 - $ 3,427 Note

Note:

Pledged bonds as collaterals for public guarantee at Finanp&h&ory Commission.
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED OR DISPOSED OF AT CO STS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$300 MILLION OR 10% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/In Thousands oShares)

TABLE 3

Marketable . . Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balance
Company Name Securities Type and Financial Statement Counter-party Natl_Jre Of. . . Gain (Loss) on
Account Relationship Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Price Carrying &lue . Shares Amount
Issuer Disposal
Taiwan Cooperative |Taipei Financial financial asets carrie{Cathay United Bank - - $ - 24,000 $ 669,600 - $ $ - 24,000 $ 669,600
Bank, Ltd. Center Corp at cost Company Limited
Taiwan High Speed |available-for-sale - - - - 53,300 551,655 - - - - 53,300 551,655
Rail Corporation financial assets (Note)

Note:

Acquisition consists of $533,000 thousandash investment and unrealized gain of $18,655sdwed on available-for-sale financial assets
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TABLE 4

TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$ 300 MILLION OR 10% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
DECEMBER 31, 2015

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Overdue Amounts
. . . Received in AIIowe_mce for
Company Name Related Party Relationship Ending Balanceé Turnover Rate Amount Actions Taken Subsequent Imple_uor?sent
Period
Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Ltd. Taiwan Cooperative Financial Holdingp@ag Ltd. | Parent company $ 744,306 - $ - - $ - $ -
(Note)

Note: Receivable - consolidated tax return.
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

PERCENTAGE SHARE IN INVESTEES AND RELATED INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 5

Percentage Share of the Bank and Its Affiliates in Investeebl¢te 1)
. . . Percentage of . Investment Total
Investee Company (Note 1) Location Main Businesses and Products Ownership Carrying Value Gain (Loss) Shares ShPro Forma Percentage ol Note
ares (Note 2) Shares .
Ownership
Finance-related business
United Taiwan Bank S.A. Belgium Banking 90.02 $ 1,758,876 $ 99,060 2,639,659 2,639,659 90.02
Cooperative Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. Taipei City Life and propemnyanse agent 100.00 219,104 182,226 1,000,000 1,000,000 100.00
Taiwan Asset Management Co., Ltd. Taipei City Acquisition of delinquensloa 17.03 2,370,934 182,511 225,000,000 225,000,000 17]03
Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. Taipei City Information service 2.89 135,405 33,863 15,107,985 15,107,085 2.89
Taiwan Financial Asset Service Co., Ltd. Taipei City Property auctio 5.88 101,125 - 10,000,000 10,000,000 5.88
Taiwan Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Taipei City Custody of secardied short-term bills 0.84 60,694 4,213 3,449,563 3,449,563 1,00
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd. Taipei City Futures clearing 1.75 53,468 9,891 5,199,035 5,199,085 1.75
Financial eSolution Co., Ltd. Taipei City  Office machine wholesaling 9.92 24,934 - 2,181,617 2,181,617 9.92
Taipei Forex Inc. Taipei City| Foreign exchange brokering 7.06 19,198 5,600 1,400,000 1,400,000 7.06
Sunny Asset Management Co., Ltd. Taipei City Acquisition of delinquent loans 0.72 431 a7 43,088 43,088 0.72
Taiwan Mobile Payment Company Tainan Cityf’ software service 4.00 24,000 - 2,400,000 2,400,000 4.00
Non-finance related business
United Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. Taipei Cjty Real estataisap 30.00 122,023 13,432 9,543,048 9,543)048 30.00
Taiwan Power Company Taipei City Power development and supply 0.24 63,153 - 78,754,764 - 78,754,764 0.24
Taiwan Sugar Company Tainan Citgugar manufacturing 0.08 - 3,387 4,233,752 4,233,752 0.08
Lien-An Service Co., Ltd. Taipei City| Leasing 5.00 1,250 125 125,000 125,000 5.0d
Taipei Rapid Transit Co., Ltd. Taipei City Public transportation - 139 9 13,363 . 13,3683 -
China Daily News Tainan CityNewspaper publishing 0.04 5P - 16,768 16,768 0.04
Taipei Financial Center Corp. Taipei City Residence and buildinge lEnstruction 1.63 669,600 - 24,000,000 24,000,000 1.68
and development

Taiwan High Speed Rail Cooperation Taipei City High speed railroagptetation business 0.95 551,655 - 53,308,000 53,308,000 0.95

Note 1: Shares or pro forma shares held by the Bank, directors, supervissidemiy vice president and affiliates in accordance with the Compankdyee been included.

Note 2: a. Pro forma shares are shares that are assumed to be obtained thinggiybity-based securities or entering into equity-linked derivativeamiatfor purposes defined in Article 74 of the Banking Law.
b. Equity-based securities, such as convertible bonds and warrants,exeddmy Article 11 of the “Securities and Exchange Law Enforcement Rules.”
c. Derivative contracts, such as those on stock options, are thosamiogfty the definition of derivatives in Statement of Internatiorcofinting Standards No. 39 - “Financial Instruments.”
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TAIWAN COOPERATIVE BANK, LTD.

INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

TABLE 6

Investment Flows Accumulated

Accumulated Accumulated

Outflow of % :
Outflow of . Carrying Value Inward
Total Amount Investment Ownership :
Investee . . L Investment| Investment . Investee Net . Investment as of Remittance of
Main Businesses and Products of Paid-in . from Taiwan as of Direct or . .
Company Name . Type |from Taiwan as Outflow Inflow Income (Loss) . Gain (Loss) | December 31,| Earnings as of
Capital of Indirect
of 2015 December 31,
December 31, Investment
January 1, 2015 2015
2015

Suzhou Branch| Deposits, loans, import and export,| $  4,547,235|Direct $ 4,547,235 -1 $ $ 4,547,235 $ (93,408 100 $ (93,408) $ 5,433,226 $ -
exchange and foreign exchange | (US$ 154,395 (US$ 154,395 (US$ 154,395
business (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)

Tianjin Branch | Deposits, loans, import and export, 2,947,314|Direct 2,947,314 - 2,947,314 (51,337 100 (51,337 3,138,529 -
exchange and foreign exchange | (US$ 97,387 (Uss 97,387 (US$ 97,387
business (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)

Fuzhou Branch | Deposits, loans, import and export, 2,950,882 |Direct 2,950,882 - 2,950,882 (83,662 100 (83,662 3,092,672 -
exchange and foreign exchange | (US$ 97,549 (US$ 97,549 (US$ 97,549
business (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)

Accumulated Investment in
Mainland China as of

Investment Amount Approved
by the Investment Commission

Maximum Investment
Allowable (Note 2)

December 31, 2015 MOEA
$ 10,445,431 $ 10,445,431 $109,772,941
(US$ 349,331) (US$ 349,331)
(Note 1) (Note 1)

Note 1: Translation into New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rates oatéhefadach outflow of investment.

Note 2: Based on the Investment Commission’s “Regulation oixbenination of Investment or Technical Cooperation in Maini@htha,” investments are limited to the largest of 60%hefBank’s net asset value or 60% of the Bank’s

consolidated net asset value.
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